
 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

February 20, 2024 at 5:05 PM  
Regular Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

AGENDA 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

B.    INVOCATION 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

D.    ANNOUNCEMENTS 

E.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

F.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

G.    PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

H.     COUNSEL'S REPORT 

I.     ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 

1. Michael Norton, Parish Administrator's written report 

J.     LOBBYIST'S REPORT 

2. Mr. McNeely with the Delta Resource Group written report 

K.    TREASURER'S FINANCIAL REPORT 

3. Accept the Financial Statements as of January 31, 2024 and Year to Date 
Budget to actual report 

L.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

4. Approve the January 18, 2024 Regular Meeting, February 5, 2024 

Administrative, Budget and Finance, Road, Solid Waste, Policy and Procedures, 
Insurance, Buildings and Properties, and Special Meeting 

M.    OLD BUSINESS 

5. Appoint Gabriel Whitaker to the Waterworks District No. 1 Board of 
Commissions 

6. Appoint Ashley Hadwin to the Planning Commission serving a six (6) year term. 

Page 1



Agenda DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 20, 2024 

 

N.    NEW BUSINESS 

7. Executive Session in compliance with La. R. S. 42:17; (2) Strategy sessions or 

negotiations with respect to collective bargaining, prospective litigation after 
formal written demand, or litigation when an open meeting would have a 
detrimental effect on the bargaining or litigating position of the public body. 

NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The DeSoto Parish Police Jury is providing notice pursuant to Louisiana Revised 

Statute 42:17 that it will b convening for an executive session as authorized by 
Louisiana Revised Statute 42:17 (A)(2) and that it intends to enter into the 

session for the purposes of discussing the lawsuit filed by David B. Means, et al 

against the DeSoto Parish Police Jury in the United States District Curt Western 
District Of Louisianan, Shreveport Division, Civil Action No. 5:23-CV-00669. The 

discussions in this executive session will be limited to matters exempt from the 
open meeting requirements set forth in Louisiana Law. NO final or binding 

action will be taken during this executive session. 

O.    RESOLUTIONS 

8. Adopt a Resolution appointing Treasurer for a two (2) Year term 

9. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Resolution and agreement with 

NORWELA Council - Boy Scouts of America 

10. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Resolution for various legal 

documents including but not limited to leases, agreements and contracts 
approved by the Police Jury 

11. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Resolution to call for an 

election allowing the Jury to implement a re-dedication of the Sales Tax (10% 
of the 1% tax levy) 

12. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Resolution to allow the 
President or the Administrator to sign leases, agreements, change orders and 

contracts for items that are already approved in the budget  

P.    ORDINANCES 

Q.    ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

13. Recommends authorizing the Administrator to sign a letter of support for DESRi 
in participation of a PILOT program 

14. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement with DeSoto Habilitation Service, Inc. and amend the budget in the 

amount of $33,300 

15. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement with the Krewe of Aquarius  

Page 2



Agenda DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 20, 2024 

 

16. Authorize the President to discuss with the State Legislatures to sponsor term 
limits for the DeSoto Parish Police Jury 

17. Recommends authorizing the President to sign the Intergovernmental 

Agreement between DeSoto Parish and Red River Parish concerning the 
replacement of the Westdale Plantation Bridge. 

18. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement with DeSoto Athletics Little League for improvements at the Grand 

Cane Ball Park and amend the budget in the amount of $55,000 to install lights 
for batting cages and BBQ Shed 

19. Recommends authorizing the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor 

Agreement with the Mansfield Civic Group, LLc and amend the budget in the 
amount of $10,000 to help with the Juneteenth Celebration 

R.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

20. Recommends to go out for more bids for Hog Eradication and try to get local 
vendors 

S.    BUILDINGS AND PROPERTIES & PARKS AND RECREATIONAL ITEMS 

21. Recommends amending the budget not exceed $175,000 to construct a parking  

lot at the 4H Building to accommodate large animal trailers for 4H  competitions 
coming from Economic Development. 

22. Recommends opening the ball park from 7 am to dark and amend the budget 

for cameras 

T.    INSURANCE ITEMS 

23. Recommends authorizing the Police Jury to allow an optional supplemental 

portable  guaranteed issued whole life insurance policy for all Police Jury  
employees, spouses, children and grandchildren at no cost to the Police  Jury 

and authorize the President to sign any necessary agreements that  has been 
reviewed by counsel for payroll deduction as payment for the  policy. 

U.   PERSONNEL ITEMS 

24. Recommends authorizing adding General Office Clerk Position at the Airport and 
Maintenance (converting from part time to full time already approved in 2024 

Budget) 

25. Recommends authorizing changing the Job description for the Assistant Solid 

Waste Superintendent  - Landfill Operations to "Possess a Level 1, Class B Solid 
Waste Operator's Certification and must be able to get a Class A Solid Waste 

Operator's Certificate within 9 months 

V.    POLICY AND PROCEDURES ITEMS 

Page 3



Agenda DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 20, 2024 

 

26. Recommends adopting Policy 511 - Sexual Abuse, Molestation and Misconduct 
Prevention Policy 

27. Recommends adopting Policy 607- Inclement Weather Policy 

28. Recommends updating the Employee Handbook definition of a family member 
to include legal guardian, grandchildren and grandparents  

29. Recommends updating the $30,000 threshold to $60,000 to the Purchasing 
Policy and Procedures for materials and Supplies as per State Law that became 

effective 8/2022 

W.    ROAD ITEMS 

30. Recommends authorizing the President to sign the Annual DOTD Uniform 

Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Act Assurance Letter 

31. Recommends installing three (3) speed bumps on Evans Loop off of Hwy 509 in 

Carmel 

32. Recommends changing all Private Road Signs to the color blue. 

33. Recommends adding two (2) speed bumps on Red Bluff Road on East End 

X.    SOLID WASTE ITEMS 

34. Recommends authorizing the President to sign the Short Form Agreement 

Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services with Forte and Tablada, 
Inc. for the US 84 Safety Turn Lane at the Mundy Landfill 

35. Recommends authorizing the Administrator to sign the Scope of Work and Cost 

Estimate with Providence for conducting quarterly surface emission monitoring 
for 2024 at the Mundy Landfill in the amount of $9,600 

Y.  ADJOURN 

Page 4



MEMORANDUM 

TO: DeSoto Parish Police Jury 

FROM: The Delta Resource Group 

RE: February Update 

DATE: February 20, 2024 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

This memo has been prepared to provide an update on legislative and other governmental 

matters to the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. 

 

Legislative Sessions 

 

Governor Landry called the Louisiana Legislature into a special session during January to 

address redistricting and other election related matters.  

 

Governor Landry has again called the Louisiana Legislature into a special session that began 

yesterday to address matters related to crime. We are tracking these bills closely to identify any 

impacts to the Jury.  

 

The 2024 Regular Legislative Session begins on March 11 and concludes no later than June 3. 

Legislators do not have a limitation on how many bills they can file - however legislation cannot 

address taxation and other specific fiscal matters.  

● Representative Larry Bagley and Senator Thomas Pressly each intend to file legislation 

to address severance tax in Louisiana.  

 

There are discussions ongoing about reducing the severance tax rate on oil - Louisiana’s rate is 

higher than average. There are not meaningful conversations taking place about reducing the 

severance rate on gas - Louisiana’s rate is lower than average already.  

 

There is some possibility that another special session could occur this summer and further 

speculation that a constitutional convention could occur. To the extent that a session on the 

constitution does occur, that would be yet another opportunity to address the severance tax 

issue.  

 

Budgeting 

 

The Governor’s executive operating budget has been prepared and will be debated this spring. 

The capital outlay budget has not been released at this time. Projections on revenues are 

beginning to slow and the state is not currently graced with significant surplus funds.  

 

Broadband 

 

Veneeth Iyengar is planning to appear before the Jury at the March meeting to discuss 

broadband opportunities for the Parish.  

Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

January 18, 2024 at 5:00 PM  
Regular Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 1A Jimmy Holmes 
District 1B Bubba Clark 
District 1C Keith Parker 

District 2 Robert Latham 
District 3 Greg Baker 

District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 

District 5 Nick Rains 
District 6 Rodriguez Ross 

 
ABSENT 
District 4B Jeri Burrell 

 

B.    INVOCATION 

Given by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Led by District 6 Ross. 
 

D.    ANNOUNCEMENTS 

E.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 

F.    ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

 

1. President 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 1C Parker to nominate 

Rodriguez Ross as President. No other nominations made. 
 

Page 31



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury January 18, 2024 

 

 
 

2. Vice President 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 1A Holmes to nominate 
Greg Baker No other nominations made. 

 

G.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

H.    PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

None 

I.     COUNSEL'S REPORT 

Discussed the 3M Lawsuit 

 

J.     ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 

3. Mr. Norton, Parish Administrator's written report 

Mr. Norton presented his written report and answered questions posed by 
individual jurors 

 

K.     LOBBYIST'S REPORT 

4. Chance McNeely, The Delta Resource Group written report 

Mr. McNeely was absent but had a written report for the Jurors 
 

L.    TREASURER'S FINANCIAL REPORT 

5. Accept the Financial Statements as of December 31, 2023 and Year to Date 
Budget to actual report 

Ms. Garcia, Parish Treasurer, presented the Financial Report ending December 
31, 2023 and reported no deficits. 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-

Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

M.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Page 32



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury January 18, 2024 

 

6. Approve December 18, 2023 Public Hearing, Regular Meeting, and Special 
Meeting; January 2, 2024 Administrative, Budget and Finance, Personnel, Solid 

Waste and Special Meeting 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-
Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

N.    OLD BUSINESS 

O.    NEW BUSINESS 

7. Authorize the President to sign a Service Agreement with Revize Software 
Systems for the new website (Approved in the 2024 Budget) 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-

Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

P.    RESOLUTIONS 

8. Authorize the President to sign a resolution ordering and calling a special 
election to be held in the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana, to authorize the 

continuation of a special tax therein, making application to the State Bond 
Commission, and providing for other matters in connection therewith. 

Alternate motion - Authorize the President to sign a Resolution ordering and 

calling a special election to be held in the Parish of DeSoto, State of Louisiana, 
to adopt a call Resolution subject to amending Mileage from 5.21 down to 5.00 

with any necessary changes with advice of Bond Commission 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-
Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

Q.    ORDINANCES 

R.    ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

9. Recommends authorizing the Administrator to sign agreements with Contract 

Haulers 

Recommends authorizing the Administrator to sign agreements with Contract 
Haulers as presented with the exception of the amended one for Louise 

Page 33



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury January 18, 2024 

 

Trucking to add paragraph seven to follow the other contracts 
 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 1B Clark. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-

Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

S.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

10. Recommends approving the budget amendments for 2023 to comply with the 
local Government Budget Act. 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-
Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

11. Recommends approving the amended 2023 Budget and the proposed 2024 
budget for the operation of the North Louisiana Criminalistics Laboratory 

Commission 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 

Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-
Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

T.    SOLID WASTE ITEMS 

12. Recommends approving the Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with Shreveport 

Green for the Household Hazardous Waste Collection Day for February 17, 2024 

Motion made by District 1B Clark, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

Voting Yea: District 1A Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 
Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-
Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

U.  ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 
 

Page 34



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

February 05, 2024 at 5:01 PM  
Budget and Finance Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Greg Baker, Chairman, Ernel Jones, Richard Fuller, Trina Boyd-Simpson and Robert 
Latham 

 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 3, Chairman Greg Baker 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 

District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 2 Robert Latham 

 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    BUDGET AND FINANCE ITEMS 

1. Award Quote to Shane Kessler for Hog Eradication at the Mundy Landfill 

Alternate motion to go out for more bids and try to get local vendors 

 

Motion made by District 2 Latham, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 4A 
Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 2 Latham 

 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

 

Page 35



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

February 05, 2024 at 5:04 PM  
Policy and Procedures Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Bubba Clark, Chairman, Jimmy Holmes, Greg Baker, Ernel Jones, and Jeri Burrell 
 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 1B, Chairman Bubba Clark 

District 1A Jimmy Holmes 
District 3 Greg Baker 

District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 4B Jeri Burrell 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    POLICY AND PROCEDURES ITEMS 

1. Adopt Policy 511 - Sexual Abuse, Molestation and Misconduct Prevention Policy 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 

Voting Yea: District 1B, Chairman Clark, District 1A Holmes, District 3 Baker, 
District 4C Jones, District 4B Burrell 
 

2. Adopt Policy 607 Inclement Weather Policy 

Motion made by District 4B Burrell, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 

Voting Yea: District 1B, Chairman Clark, District 1A Holmes, District 3 Baker, 
District 4C Jones, District 4B Burrell 
 

3. Update the Employee Handbook definition of a family member to include legal 
guardian, grandchildren and grand parents 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 

Voting Yea: District 1B, Chairman Clark, District 1A Holmes, District 3 Baker, 

Page 36



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 05, 2024 

 

District 4C Jones, District 4B Burrell 
 

4. Approve updating the $30,000 threshold to $60,000 to the Purchasing Policy 

and Procedures for materials and Supplies as per State Law that became 
effective 8/2022 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 3 Baker. 
Voting Yea: District 1B, Chairman Clark, District 1A Holmes, District 3 Baker, 

District 4C Jones, District 4B Burrell 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4B Burrell, Seconded by District 1A Holmes. 
 

Page 37



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

February 05, 2024 at 5:00 PM  
Administrative Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

 

A.  CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 1A, Chairman Jimmy Holmes 
District 1B Bubba Clark 
District 1C Keith Parker 

District 2 Robert Latham 
District 3 Greg Baker 

District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 4B Jeri Burrell 

District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
District 5 Nick Rains 

District 6 Rodriguez Ross 
 

B.   INVOCATION 

Given by District 6 Ross. 
 

C.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Led by District 6 Ross. 

 

D.   PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

None 

E.    LEGAL COUNSEL'S REPORT 

None 

F.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

G.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

1. Betty Carter - Property Nuisance  

Page 38



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 05, 2024 

 

Betty Carter - Property Nuisance  

William Bradford - DESRi 

Mary Green and Latarsha Shelton - Discussed Juneteenth Celebration 

H.    ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

2. Authorize the President to sign a Resolution and agreement with NORWELA 

Council - Boy Scouts of America. 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 2 Latham. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, 
District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 
4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

3. Authorize the President to sign a Resolution for various legal documents 

including but not limited to leases, agreement, and contracts approved by the 
Police Jury 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, 
District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 

4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

4. Authorize the Administrator to sign a letter of support for DESRi in participation 

of a PILOT program 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 6 Ross. 

Voting Yea: District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A 
Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 
Rains, District 6 Ross 

Voting Nay: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1C Parker 
 

5. Appoint member to the North Louisiana Economic Partnership Board, replacing 

Kyle Kennington. 

Appointed Ernel Jones to the NLEP  Board. 

6. Authorize the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with DeSoto 
Habilitation Services, Inc. and amend the budget in the amount of $33,300.00 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 6 Ross. 
Voting Yea: District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 Latham, District 3 

Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 5 Rains, 
District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 1A, Chairman Holmes 

Page 39



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 05, 2024 

 

Voting Abstaining: District 4D Boyd-Simpson 
 

7. Authorize the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with the 

Krewe of Aquarius ($3500 already approved in budget)  

Motion made by District 1B Clark, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, 
District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 

4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 1C Parker 
 

8. Authorize the President to discuss with the State Legislature to sponsor term 
limits for the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. 

Motion made by District 5 Rains, Seconded by District 1A, Chairman Holmes. 

Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, 
District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, District 5 Rains 

Voting Nay: District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D 
Boyd-Simpson, District 6 Ross 

 

9. Authorize the Jury to implement a re-dedication of the Sales Tax 

Alternate motion to authorize the President to sign a Resolution to call for an 

election allowing the Jury to implement a re-dedication of the existing Sales Tax 
(10%) 

 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, 

District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, 
District 6 Ross 

Voting Nay: District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones 
 

10. Authorize the President to sign a Resolution to allow the President or the 

Administrator to sign leases, agreements, change orders and contracts for 
items that are already approved in the budget 

Motion made by District 6 Ross, Seconded by District 2 Latham. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, 

District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4C Jones, District 
4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 4B Burrell 

 

11. Authorize the President to sign the Intergovernmental Agreement between 

DeSoto Parish and Red River Parish concerning the replacement of the Westdale 
Plantation Bridge. 

Page 40



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 05, 2024 

 

Motion made by District 3 Baker, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, 

District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 
4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 
 

12. Authorize the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with DeSoto 
Athletics Little League for improvements at the Grand Cane Ball Park and 

amend the budget in the amount of $135,000. 

Alternate motion to authorize the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement with DeSoto Athletics Little League for improvements at the Grand 

Cane Ball Park and amend the budget in the amount of $55,000 for lighting 
cages and BBQ Shed 

 

Motion made by District 2 Latham, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 
Voting Yea: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, 

District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 
4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 Rains, District 6 Ross 

 

13. Amend the 2024 Holiday Schedule to include Fat Tuesday (February 13, 2024) 
and All Saints Day (November 1, 2024) 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 
Voting Yea: District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 Latham, District 4A 

Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 
Rains, District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 3 Baker 

 

14. Authorize the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with the 

Mansfield Civic Group, LLC and amend the budget in the amount of $10,000 to 
help with the Juneteenth Celebration. 

Alternate motion to authorize the President to sign a Cooperative Endeavor 

Agreement with the Mansfield Civic Group, LLC and amend the budget in the 
amount $10,000 to help with the Juneteenth Celebration designated to the free 

events on Thursday and Sunday 
 

Motion made by District 4B Burrell, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

Voting Yea: District 1B Clark, District 2 Latham, District 3 Baker, District 4A 
Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 

Rains, District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 1A, Chairman Holmes, District 1C Parker 

 

I.     ADJOURN 

Page 41



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 05, 2024 

 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 
 

Page 42



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

February 05, 2024 at 5:03 PM  
Solid Waste Committee  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Greg Baker, Chairman, Ernel Jones, Richard Fuller, Jimmy Holmes and Keith Parker 
 

PRESENT 

District 3, Chairman Greg Baker 
District 4C Ernel Jones 

District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 1A Jimmy Holmes 

District 1C Keith Parker 
 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 3, Chairman Greg Baker 

District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 4A Richard Fuller 
District 1A Jimmy Holmes 

District 1C Keith Parker 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

Authorize the Administrator to sign a Scope of Work and Cost Estimate  with Providence 
for conducting quarterly surface emission monitoring for  2024 at the Mundy Landfill in the 

amount of $9,600 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 1A Holmes. 

Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4C Jones, District 4A Fuller, District 1A 
Holmes, District 1C Parker 
 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    SOLID WASTE ITEMS 

1. Authorize the President to sign the Short Form Agreement Between Owner and 
Engineer for Professional Services with Forte and Tablada, Inc, for the US 84 

Safety Turn Lane at the Mundy Landfill 

Page 43



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 05, 2024 

 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4C Jones, District 4A Fuller, 

District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker 
 

2. Authorize the Administrator to sign a Scope of Work and Cost Estimate with 

Providence for conducting quarterly surface emission monitoring for 2024 at the 
Mundy Landfill in the amount of $9,600 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

Voting Yea: District 3, Chairman Baker, District 4C Jones, District 4A Fuller, 
District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker 

 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 1A Holmes, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 

 

Page 44



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

February 05, 2024 at 5:07 PM  
Buildings and Properties & Parks and Recreational 

Committee 
 

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Nick Rains, Chairman, Keith Parker, Richard Fuller, Ernel Jones, and Robert Latham 
 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 5, Chairman Nick Rains 

District 1C Keith Parker 
District 4A Richard Fuller 

District 4C Ernel Jones 
District 2 Robert Latham 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    BUILDINGS AND PROPERTIES ITEMS 

1. Authorize amending the budget not exceed $175,000 to construct a parking lot 
at the 4H Building to accommodate large animal trailers for 4H competitions 

coming from Economic Development. 

Motion made by District 2 Latham, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
Voting Yea: District 5, Chairman Rains, District 1C Parker, District 4A Fuller, 

District 4C Jones, District 2 Latham 
 

E.    PARKS AND RECREATIONAL ITEMS 

2. Authorize locking the ballpark at all times to be used as requested 

Alternate motion to open the ball park from 7 am to dark and amend the 

budget to get cameras 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 1C Parker. 

Voting Yea: District 5, Chairman Rains, District 1C Parker, District 4A Fuller, 

Page 45



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 05, 2024 

 

District 4C Jones, District 2 Latham 
 

F.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 4C Jones. 
 

Page 46



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

February 05, 2024 at 5:06 PM  
Insurance Committee  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Robert Latham, Chairman, Bubba Clark, Jeri Burrell, Ernel Jones and Trina Boyd-Simpson 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 

District 2, Chairman Robert Latham 
District 1B Bubba Clark 

District 4B Jeri Burrell 
District 4C Ernel Jones 

District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    INSURANCE ITEMS 

1. Authorize the Police Jury to allow an optional supplemental portable guaranteed 

issued whole life insurance policy for all Police Jury employees, spouses, 
children and grandchildren at no cost to the Police Jury and authorize the 

President to sign any necessary agreements that has been reviewed by counsel 
for payroll deduction as payment for the policy. 

Motion made by District 1B Clark, Seconded by District 4D Boyd-Simpson. 

Voting Yea: District 2, Chairman Latham, District 1B Clark, District 4B Burrell, 
District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson 

 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 1B Clark. 

 
 

Page 47



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

February 05, 2024 at 5:05 PM 
 Personnel Committee Meeting 
 

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, 

Mansfield, LA 71052  101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052 

 

MINUTES 

Jeri Burrell, Chairwoman, Trina Boyd-Simpson, Bubba Clark, Jimmy Holmes, and Keith 

Parker 
 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 4B, Chairwoman Jeri Burrell 

District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
District 1B Bubba Clark 
District 1A Jimmy Holmes 

District 1C Keith Parker 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

D.    PERSONNEL ITEMS 

1. Authorize adding General Office Clerk Position at the Airport and Maintenance 

(converting from part time to full time already approved in 2024 budget) 

Motion made by District 4D Boyd-Simpson, Seconded by District 1B Clark. 

Voting Yea: District 4B, Chairwoman Burrell, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 
1B Clark, District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker 

 

2. Authorize changing the job description for the Assistant Solid Waste 
Superintendent - Landfill Operations to "Possess a Level 1, Class B Solid Waste 

Operator's Certificate and must be able to get a Class A Solid Waste Operator's 
Certificate within 6 months." 

Alternate motion to authorize changing the job description for the Assistant 
Solid Waste Superintendent - Landfill Operations to "Possess a Level 1, Class B 

Solid Waste Operator's Certificate and must be able to get a Class A Solid 
Waste Operator's Certificate within 9 months." 

Page 48



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 05, 2024 

 

Motion made by District 4B, Chairwoman Burrell, Seconded by District 1C 
Parker. 

Voting Yea: District 4B, Chairwoman Burrell, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 
1B Clark, District 1A Holmes, District 1C Parker 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 1B Clark. 

 

Page 49



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

February 05, 2024 at 5:02 PM  
Road Committee Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Ernel Jones, Chairman, Jimmy Holmes, Nick Rains, Keith Parker,  and Richard Fuller 
 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 4C, Chairman Ernel Jones 

District 1A Jimmy Holmes 
District 5 Nick Rains 

District 1C Keith Parker 
District 4A Richard Fuller 
 

B.    CALL FOR ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

Install 2 speed bumps on Red Bluff Road on the East End 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 

Voting Yea: District 4C, Chairman Jones, District 1A Holmes, District 5 Rains, District 1C 
Parker, District 4A Fuller 

 

C.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

1. Orbideen Norris and Ernest Whitaker - Red Lick Road and George Smalls Road 

Michael Rister, Parish Engineer, gave an update on the EDA Grant for Parks 
Road 

 

D.    ROAD ITEMS 

2. Authorize the President to sign the Annual DOTD Uniform Relocation Assistance 

and Real Property Acquisition Act Assurance Letter 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 

Voting Yea: District 4C, Chairman Jones, District 1A Holmes, District 5 Rains, 
District 1C Parker, District 4A Fuller 

 

3. Install three (3) speed bumps on Evans Loop off of Hwy 509 in Carmel. 

Page 50



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 05, 2024 

 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 
Voting Yea: District 4C, Chairman Jones, District 1A Holmes, District 5 Rains, 

District 1C Parker, District 4A Fuller 
 

4. Approve changing all Private Road Signs to the color blue 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
Voting Yea: District 4C, Chairman Jones, District 1A Holmes, District 5 Rains, 

District 1C Parker, District 4A Fuller 
 

5. Install 2 speed bumps on Red Bluff Road on the East End 

Motion made by District 4A Fuller, Seconded by District 5 Rains. 
Voting Yea: District 4C, Chairman Jones, District 1A Holmes, District 5 Rains, 

District 1C Parker, District 4A Fuller 
 

E.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 1C Parker, Seconded by District 4A Fuller. 
 

Page 51



 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  

February 05, 2024 at 5:30 PM  
Special Meeting  

Police Jury Meeting Room, 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052  

MINUTES 

Rodriguez Ross, President • Greg Baker, Vice President 
Michael Norton, Administrator • Jodi Zeigler, Secretary • Liliana Garcia, Treasurer 

A.    CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENT 
District 1A Jimmy Holmes 

District 1B Bubba Clark 
District 1C Keith Parker 

District 2 Robert Latham 
District 3 Greg Baker 
District 4A Richard Fuller 

District 4B Jeri Burrell 
District 4C Ernel Jones 

District 4D Trina Boyd-Simpson 
District 5 Nick Rains 
District 6 Rodriguez Ross 

 

B.    INVOCATION 

Done in previous meeting 

 

C.    PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Done in previous meeting 
 

D.    GUEST AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

E.    ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

None 

F.    NEW BUSINESS 

1. Recommends amending the 2024 Holiday Schedule to include Fat Tuesday 

(February 13, 2024) and All Saints Day (November 1, 2024). 

Page 52



Minutes DeSoto Parish Police Jury February 05, 2024 

 

Motion made by District 4C Jones. 
Voting Yea: District 1B Clark, District 1C Parker, District 2 Latham, District 4A 

Fuller, District 4B Burrell, District 4C Jones, District 4D Boyd-Simpson, District 5 
Rains, District 6 Ross 
Voting Nay: District 1A Holmes, District 3 Baker 

 

G.    ADJOURN 

Motion made by District 4C Jones, Seconded by District 4B Burrell. 

 

Page 53



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, The DeSoto Parish Police Jury, in conducting its business, approves various 
documents including leases, agreements and contracts; and  

 

WHEREAS, these documents require the signature of the Treasurer of the DeSoto Parish Police 

Jury; 

 
WHEREAS, the Desoto Parish Police Jury hereby appoints Lilliana Garcia as the Parish 

Treasurer for a two (2) year period as per L.S. 33:1651, 1661. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the DeSoto Parish Police Jury does hereby authorize 

its duly elected Treasurer to sign documents authorized by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. 

 
MOTION TO ADOPT the above Resolution was made by __________________, seconded by 

___________________________.  

WHEREUPON the Resolution was declared duly adopted on this the 20th day of February 2024.  

 

AYES:         NAYS:                          ABSENT:         Abstain:        

 

 

                                                                                                                                              
RODRIGUEZ ROSS, PRESIDENT                              JODI ZEIGLER, PARISH SECRETARY 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY                                 DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 

 

 

 

 
CERTIFIED 

 

I, Jodi Zeigler, hereby certify in my capacity as the Parish Secretary of the DeSoto Parish Police 

Jury that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Resolution passed by the 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury at a Regular Meeting held on the  20th day of  February, 2024  a 
quorum being present. 

 

                                                                                    

Jodi Zeigler, Parish Secretary 

 
 

Page 54



NORWELA COUNCIL - BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA 

3508 Beverly Place 

Shreveport, LA  71104 
318-868-2774 

318-861-3354 FAX 

www.norwela.org 
 

Agreement to Pay Costs Associated with Purchase, Installation and 

Maintenance of Highway Two (2) New Signs on Highway 171 for 

Entrance to the Kinsey Scout Reservation and Mellicent Garland 

Camping Area 

 

 WHEREAS, in October of 2013, NORWELA COUNCIL OF THE BOY SCOUTS 

OF AMERICA (“NORWELA COUNCIL”) held a dedication ceremony to rename the 

Garland Scout Ranch the Kinsey Scout Reservation; and 

 

 WHEREAS, two (2) traffic signs on Highway 171 notify traffic only of the 

“Garland Scout Ranch” which has the potential to confuse families bringing scouts to the 

“Kinsey Scout Reservation;” 

 

 WHEREAS, NORWELA COUNCIL made a request to the Louisiana Department 

of Transportation and Development (“LDOTD”) to revise the highway signs to designate 

Kinsey Scout Reservation and LDOTD advised NORWELA COUNCIL and DESOTO 

PARISH POLICE JURY that in order to correct the signs the governing entity over the 

area where the traffic signs are located, being the DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY, must 

adopt a resolution to be responsible for the costs associated with the purchase, installation 

and maintenance of the new, revised signs; 

 

 WHEREAS, NORWELA COUNCIL agreed to continue the memory of Mellicent 

Story Garland, the original namesake of the Garland Scout Ranch, as follows: 

 

A. The primary road encircling the main facilities of the scout camp is named the 

“Mellicent Garland Loop;” 

B. The primary open camping area is designated as the “Garland Camping Area” 

in honor of Mellicent Story Garland;  

C. NORWELA COUNCIL has agreed to install a plaque honoring Mellicent Story 

Garland in a prominent place at the camp; and 

D. NORWELA COUNCIL has agreed to cover the cost of changing the two (2) 

highway signs to read as follows: 

 

KINSEY SCOUT RESERVATION 

MELLICENT GARLAND CAMPING AREA 

 

 

 WHEREAS, NORWELA COUNCIL has agreed to: (1) reimburse or deposit with 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY an amount sufficient to cover all costs associated with 

Page 55



the purchase and installation of the new highway signs; (2) enlist the help of legal counsel 

to prepare all applications and obtain all necessary approvals from the LDOTD to change 

the highway signs;  and (3) pay for or reimburse DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY for 

maintenance costs for the two (2) new highway signs for the Kinsey Scout Reservation and 

Mellicent Garland Camping Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY is considering the adoption of a 

resolution to be responsible for the costs associated with the purchase, installation and 

maintenance of the signs, provided NORWELA COUNCIL agrees to pay in advance or 

reimburse DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY all costs associated with the purchase, 

installation and maintenance of the signs as provided herein. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, that in consideration of the foregoing, 

NORWELA COUNCIL and DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY agree follows:  

 

If DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY adopts a resolution approving the 

replacement of the two (2) highway signs designated “Garland Scout Ranch” located 

proximately to the Kinsey Scout Reservation at 3492 US-171, Stonewall, Louisiana 71078, 

with two (2) new highway signs designated as follows: 

 

KINSEY SCOUT RESERVATION 

MELLICENT GARLAND CAMPING AREA 

 

and confirming to the LDOTD that it will cover all costs associated with the purchase, 

installation and maintenance of such signs, NORWELA COUNCIL shall:  

 

A. Pay in advance or reimburse DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY within ten (10) 

days of receipt of an invoice for all costs associated with the purchase and 

installation of the new highway signs referred to above;  

B. To the extent practicable, NORWELA COUNCIL will at its sole cost and 

expense prepare all applications and satisfy all regulatory requirements to cause 

LDOTD to change the highway signs as provided herein; and  

C. Pay or reimburse DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY for maintenance costs for 

the two (2) new highway signs for the Kinsey Scout Reservation and Mellicent 

Garland Camping Area. 

 

If it is determined that NORWELA COUNCIL had defaulted on its obligations 

under this Agreement after written notice of default and ten (10) days opportunity to cure, 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY shall be entitled to recover reasonable legal fees and 

court costs incurred to enforce such obligations. 

 

This agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will 

be deemed to be an original copy and all of which, when taken together, will be deemed to 

constitute one and the same agreement and will be effective when counterparts have been 

signed by each of the parties and delivered to the other parties.  A manual signature whose 

image shall have been transmitted electronically will constitute an original signature for all 

Page 56



purposes.  The delivery of copies of this agreement, including executed signature pages, 

by electronic transmission will constitute effective delivery of this agreement for all 

purposes. 

 

 

 

NORWELA COUNCIL, BSA  DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 

 

 

By: __________________________  By: ___________________________ 

Jeffery M. Brasher     

Scout Executive/CEO    

 

Date: ____________________, 2024  Date: ______________________2024 

Page 57



DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 

PARISH OF DESOTO, STATE OF LOUISIANA 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ OF 2024 

 
TITLE: A RESOLUTION TO REPLACE TWO TRAFFIC SIGNS ON 

HIGHWAY 171 ADVISING TRAFFIC OF THE ENTRANCE TO THE 

KINSEY SCOUT RESERVATION AND MELLICENT GARLAND 

CAMPING AREA 

 

 WHEREAS, in October of 2013, NORWELA COUNCIL OF THE BOY 

SCOUTS OF AMERICA (“NORWELA COUNCIL”) held a dedication ceremony to 

rename the Garland Scout Ranch the Kinsey Scout Reservation; and 

 

 WHEREAS, two (2) traffic signs on Highway 171 notify traffic only of the 

“Garland Scout Ranch” which has the potential to confuse families bringing scouts to the 

Kinsey Scout Reservation; 

 

 WHEREAS, NORWELA COUNCIL made a request to the Louisiana Department 

of Transportation and Development (“LDOTD”) to revise the highway signs to designate 

Kinsey Scout Reservation and LDOTD advised NORWELA COUNCIL and DESOTO 

PARISH POLICE JURY that in order to correct the signs the governing entity over the 

area where the traffic signs are located, being the DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY, 

must adopt a resolution to be responsible for the costs associated with the purchase, 

installation and maintenance of the new, revised signs; 

 

 WHEREAS, NORWELA COUNCIL agreed to continue the memory of Mellicent 

Story Garland as follows: 

 

A. The primary road encircling the main facilities of the scout camp is named the 

“Mellicent Garland Loop;” 

B. The primary open camping area is designated as the “Garland Camping Area” 

in honor of Mellicent Story Garland;  

C. NORWELA COUNCIL has agreed to install a plaque honoring Mellicent 

Story Garland in a prominent place at the camp; and 

D. NORWELA COUNCIL has agreed to cover the cost of changing the two (2) 

highway signs to read as follows: 

 

KINSEY SCOUT RESERVATION 

MELLICENT GARLAND CAMPING AREA 

 

 

 WHEREAS, NORWELA COUNCIL has agreed to: (1) reimburse or deposit with 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY an amount sufficient to cover all costs associated 

with the purchase and installation of the new highway signs; (2) enlist the help of legal 

counsel to prepare all applications and obtain all necessary approvals from the LDOTD to 

change the highway signs;  and (3) pay for or reimburse DESOTO PARISH POLICE 

Page 58



JURY for maintenance costs for the two (2) new highway signs for the Kinsey Scout 

Reservation and Mellicent Garland Camping Area; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that in consideration of the foregoing 

the DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY hereby adopts the following resolution: 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the two (2) highway signs designated “Garland Scout 

Ranch” located proximately to the Kinsey Scout Reservation at 3492 US-171, Stonewall, 

Louisiana 71078, should be replaced by highway signs designating the following: 

 

KINSEY SCOUT RESERVATION 

MELLICENT GARLAND CAMPING AREA 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY will be 

responsible for the costs associated with the purchase, installation and maintenance of the 

signs. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY shall 

obtain reimbursement for all such costs associated with the purchase, installation and 

maintenance of the signs for the Kinsey Scout Reservation and Mellicent Garland 

Camping Area from the NORWELA COUNCIL pursuant to separate agreement between 

the NORWELA COUNCIL and the DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY.  

 

 This Resolution was considered and upon motion of _____________________ 

and being seconded by ____________________, was adopted by the following vote on 

this the ___ day of January, 2024:  

 

 AYES:  _________  

 NAYS: _________ 

 ABSENT: _________ 

 

 

______________________________ ______________________________ 

__________________, PRESIDENT  JODI ZEIGLER, SECRETARY 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY  DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 

Page 59



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, The DeSoto Parish Police Jury, in conducting its business, approves various legal 
documents including leases, agreements and contracts; and  

 

WHEREAS, these documents require the signature of the President of the DeSoto Parish Police 

Jury; 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the DeSoto Parish Police Jury does hereby authorize 

its duly elected President to sign legal documents authorized by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury. 

 

MOTION TO ADOPT the above Resolution was made by ________________, seconded by 

________________. 

WHEREUPON the Resolution was declared duly adopted on this the 20th  day of February 2024.  

 

AYES:       NAYS:                           ABSENT:         Abstain:        

 
 

                                                                                                                                              

RODRUGUEZ ROSS, PRESIDENT                           JODI ZEIGLER, PARISH SECRETARY 

DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY                                  DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 

 
 

 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

I, Jodi Zeigler, hereby certify in my capacity as the Parish Secretary of the DeSoto Parish Police 
Jury that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Resolution passed by the 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury at a Regular Meeting held on the  20th   day of  February, 2024  a 

quorum being present. 

 

                                                                                    
Jodi Zeigler, Parish Secretary 

 
 

Page 60



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

 
 
WHEREAS, the DeSoto Parish Police Jury has adopted an annual budget for the 

fiscal year, which includes provisions for various projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, certain projects included in the budget have been identified and 

require authorization for initiation and continuation; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the organization to proceed with these 

projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, the funding required for the authorized projects shall be sourced 

from the budget allocation previously approved for each respective project; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, The project managers shall provide regular progress report the 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury to ensure transparency and oversight.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the DeSoto Parish Police Jury is 

hereby authorized to take any further action necessary to implement the 

authorized projects in accordance with the budget. 

 
MOTION TO ADOPT the above Resolution was made by _______________ 

seconded by _____________________. 

WHEREUPON the Resolution was declared duly adopted on this the   _20th _   

day of February 2024.  

 

AYES:         NAYS:                       ABSENT:         Abstain: __ 

      

 
 

Page 61



             
RODRIGUEZ ROSS, PRESIDENT                      JODI ZEIGLER,PARISH SECRETARY 
DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY                        DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 

 
CERTIFIED 

 
I, Jodi Zeigler, hereby certify in my capacity as the Parish Secretary of the 
DeSoto Parish Police Jury that the above and foregoing is a true and correct 
copy of the Resolution passed by the DeSoto Parish Police Jury at a Regular 
Meeting held on the _20th   day of    February, 2024__ a quorum being present. 
 
 
                                                                                     

Jodi Zeigler, Parish Secretary 
 

Page 62



December 6, 2023 

 

North Louisiana Finance Authority 

Attn: H. Calvin Austin, III. - Chairman   

P.O. Box 63 

Shreveport, Louisiana 71161 

 

Re: Letter of Support/No Objection   

  

Dear Mr. Austin: 

 

We understand that the North Louisiana Finance Authority is prepared to offer D.E. Shaw 

Renewable Investments an opportunity to participate in a Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) 

arrangement. We further understand that the terms of this PILOT will equal a fifty percent 

abatement of assessed property taxes during the ten-year life of this agreement. This incentive is 

intended to spur economic development and growth in the Desoto Parish community and will yield 

an estimated $114,405,958 in additional tax revenue for Desoto Parish over the life of this project. 

The purpose of this letter is to offer the Desoto Parish Police Jury’s support of this agreement.  

 

The Desoto Parish Police Jury has no objection to D.E. Shaw Renewable Investments’ PILOT 

Agreement with the North Louisiana Finance Authority, and we are hopeful their company will 

find much success as they invest over $441,210,000 in our parish. Please feel free to contact my 

office should you need further information on this matter.  

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

       Michael Norton 

       Parish Administrator 

Page 63



Executive Summary

 

Estimated Total Parish Property Tax Collections During PILOT Term $33,344,427

Estimated Total Sales/Use Tax Collections During Construction $7,059,360

Estimated Total Revenue Collections During Construction + 1st 10 Years of Operations $40,403,787

Total Estimated Property Tax Collections over 30 years $107,346,608

Estimated Total Sales/Use Tax Collections During Construction $7,059,360

Estimated Collections From Project Development and Operational Term $114,405,968

Note: This analysis does not factor in nor anticipate changes in the millage rates, nor changes by the Lousiaiana Tax Commission in composit multipliers, or 

useful lives over time, all of which could impact the proposed estimates presented.

Page 64



Investment Amount $441,210,000

Estimated % Subject to Tax 40%

Estimated Sales/Use Tax Basis $176,484,000

Taxing Entity Tax Rate

Est. Sales/Use Tax 

Collections

School Board 2.50% $4,412,100.00

Police Jury 1% $1,764,840.00

Law Enforcement 0.50% $882,420.00

4.00% $7,059,360.00

Page 65



Estimated Local Impact of PILOT on DeSoto Parish

Taxing Body

Total Collections 

from Project if it 

does not Happen

Estimated Property 

Tax Collections 

During Exemption 

Period + 10 years 

(20yrs) 

Estimated Property 

Tax Collections over 

30 Years

Property Taxes Sales/Use Taxes

Sheriff $0 $4,022,909 $882,420 $9,762,433 $12,951,058

School Board $0 $17,268,031 $4,412,100 $41,904,504 $55,591,434

Parish Government $0 $4,818,347 $1,764,840 $11,692,732 $15,511,835

Other Taxing Authorities $0 $7,235,140 $17,557,588 $23,292,281

TOTAL $0 $33,344,427 $7,059,360 $80,917,258 $107,346,608

Estimated Property Tax Collections During 

Exemption Period + 0 years (10yrs) 

Page 66



Project Name: DATED: 10/18/2023

Investment Amount: $441,210,000

Location: DeSoto Parish

25 Yr Depreciation Rate1 0.99 0.97 0.95 0.96 0.96 0.94 0.90 0.88 0.85 0.81

Depreciated Value 436,797,900 427,973,700 419,149,500 423,561,600 423,561,600 414,737,400 397,089,000 388,264,800 375,028,500 357,380,100

100% Assessed Value (= Depreciated Value x 15% Assessment Rate) 65,519,685 64,196,055 62,872,425 63,534,240 63,534,240 62,210,610 59,563,350 58,239,720 56,254,275 53,607,015

50% Assessed Value (= 50% of 100% of Assessed Value) 32,759,843 32,098,028 31,436,213 31,767,120 31,767,120 31,105,305 29,781,675 29,119,860 28,127,138 26,803,508

Taxing Body Millage Rate
2 Converted 

Millage Rate

YEAR 1 EXEMPT 

AMOUNT

YEAR 2 EXEMPT 

AMOUNT

YEAR 3 EXEMPT 

AMOUNT

YEAR 4 EXEMPT 

AMOUNT

YEAR 5 EXEMPT 

AMOUNT

YEAR 6 EXEMPT 

AMOUNT

YEAR 7 EXEMPT 

AMOUNT

YEAR 8 EXEMPT 

AMOUNT

YEAR 9 EXEMPT 

AMOUNT

YEAR 10 EXEMPT 

AMOUNT

TOTAL 

EXEMPTION 

AMOUNT

Sheriff 13.200 0.01320 $432,430 $423,694 $414,958 $419,326 $419,326 $410,590 $393,118 $384,382 $371,278 $353,806 $4,022,909

School Board 56.660 0.05666 $1,856,173 $1,818,674 $1,781,176 $1,799,925 $1,799,925 $1,762,427 $1,687,430 $1,649,931 $1,593,684 $1,518,687 $17,268,031

Police Jury 15.810 0.01581 $517,933 $507,470 $497,007 $502,238 $502,238 $491,775 $470,848 $460,385 $444,690 $423,763 $4,818,347

Ambulance 7.000 0.00700 $229,319 $224,686 $220,053 $222,370 $222,370 $217,737 $208,472 $203,839 $196,890 $187,625 $2,133,361

Assessor 2.550 0.00255 $83,538 $81,850 $80,162 $81,006 $81,006 $79,319 $75,943 $74,256 $71,724 $68,349 $777,153

E911 1.040 0.00104 $34,070 $33,382 $32,694 $33,038 $33,038 $32,350 $30,973 $30,285 $29,252 $27,876 $316,956

Fire District 12.160 0.01216 $398,360 $390,312 $382,264 $386,288 $386,288 $378,241 $362,145 $354,097 $342,026 $325,931 $3,705,952

Water District 0.990 0.00099 $32,432 $31,777 $31,122 $31,449 $31,449 $30,794 $29,484 $28,829 $27,846 $26,535 $301,718

TOTAL 109.410 0.10941 $3,584,254 $3,511,845 $3,439,436 $3,475,641 $3,475,641 $3,403,231 $3,258,413 $3,186,004 $3,077,390 $2,932,572 $33,344,427

Taxing Body Millage Rate
2 Converted 

Millage Rate

YEAR 1 COLLECTED 

AMOUNT

YEAR 2 COLLECTED 

AMOUNT

YEAR 3 

COLLECTED 

AMOUNT

YEAR 4 

COLLECTED 

AMOUNT

YEAR 5 

COLLECTED 

AMOUNT

YEAR 6 

COLLECTED 

AMOUNT

YEAR 7 

COLLECTED 

AMOUNT

YEAR 8 

COLLECTED 

AMOUNT

YEAR 9 

COLLECTED 

AMOUNT

YEAR 10 

COLLECTED 

AMOUNT

TOTAL COLLECTED 

AMOUNT

Sheriff 13.200 0.01320 $432,430 $423,694 $414,958 $419,326 $419,326 $410,590 $393,118 $384,382 $371,278 $353,806 $4,022,909

School Board 56.660 0.05666 $1,856,173 $1,818,674 $1,781,176 $1,799,925 $1,799,925 $1,762,427 $1,687,430 $1,649,931 $1,593,684 $1,518,687 $17,268,031

Policy Jury 15.810 0.01581 $517,933 $507,470 $497,007 $502,238 $502,238 $491,775 $470,848 $460,385 $444,690 $423,763 $4,818,347

Ambulance 7.000 0.00700 $229,319 $224,686 $220,053 $222,370 $222,370 $217,737 $208,472 $203,839 $196,890 $187,625 $2,133,361

Assessor 2.550 0.00255 $83,538 $81,850 $80,162 $81,006 $81,006 $79,319 $75,943 $74,256 $71,724 $68,349 $777,153

E911 1.040 0.00104 $34,070 $33,382 $32,694 $33,038 $33,038 $32,350 $30,973 $30,285 $29,252 $27,876 $316,956

Fire District 12.160 0.01216 $398,360 $390,312 $382,264 $386,288 $386,288 $378,241 $362,145 $354,097 $342,026 $325,931 $3,705,952

Water District 0.990 0.00099 $32,432 $31,777 $31,122 $31,449 $31,449 $30,794 $29,484 $28,829 $27,846 $26,535 $301,718

TOTAL 109.410 0.10941 $3,584,254 $3,511,845 $3,439,436 $3,475,641 $3,475,641 $3,403,231 $3,258,413 $3,186,004 $3,077,390 $2,932,572 $33,344,427

1.  Depreciation is based upon the current 2021  Table 2503.D provided by the Louisiana Tax Commission.

2.  Used actual millage rates for 2022 - confirmed by Parish Assessor

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 #DIV/0!

ABATEMENT IMPACT SUMMARY FOR ALL AFFECTED TAXING BODIES

10 YEARS TAX ABATEMENT AT 50% EXEMPTION 

DESRI/CLECO - Dolet Hills Solar

En
d

 o
f A

b
ate

m
e

n
t P

e
rio

d

Page 67



0.80 0.78 0.72 0.70 0.67 0.65 0.63 0.60 0.54 0.48 0.45 0.43 0.40 0.33 0.34 0.34 0.34 0.34 0.34 0.34

352,968,000 344,143,800 317,671,200 308,847,000 295,610,700 286,786,500 277,962,300 264,726,000 238,253,400 211,780,800 198,544,500 189,720,300 176,484,000 145,599,300 150,011,400 150,011,400 150,011,400 150,011,400 150,011,400 150,011,400

52,945,200 51,621,570 47,650,680 46,327,050 44,341,605 43,017,975 41,694,345 39,708,900 35,738,010 31,767,120 29,781,675 28,458,045 26,472,600 21,839,895 22,501,710 22,501,710 22,501,710 22,501,710 22,501,710 22,501,710

YEAR 11 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 12 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 13 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 14 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 15 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 16 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 17 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 18 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 19 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 20 TAX 

AMOUNT

TOTAL COLLECTED 

AMOUNT    (Y11 - 

Y20)

TOTAL COLLECTED 

AMOUNT      (Y1 - 

Y20)

YEAR 21 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 22 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 23 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 24 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 25 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 26 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 27 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 28 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 29 TAX 

AMOUNT

YEAR 30 TAX 

AMOUNT

TOTAL COLLECTED 

AMOUNT    (Y21 - 

Y30)

TOTAL COLLECTED 

AMOUNT      (Y1 - 

Y30)

$698,877 $681,405 $628,989 $611,517 $585,309 $567,837 $550,365 $524,157 $471,742 $419,326 $5,739,524 $9,762,433 $393,118 $375,646 $349,438 $288,287 $297,023 $297,023 $297,023 $297,023 $297,023 $297,023 $3,188,625 $12,951,058

$2,999,875 $2,924,878 $2,699,888 $2,624,891 $2,512,395 $2,437,398 $2,362,402 $2,249,906 $2,024,916 $1,799,925 $24,636,474 $41,904,504 $1,687,430 $1,612,433 $1,499,938 $1,237,448 $1,274,947 $1,274,947 $1,274,947 $1,274,947 $1,274,947 $1,274,947 $13,686,930 $55,591,434

$837,064 $816,137 $753,357 $732,431 $701,041 $680,114 $659,188 $627,798 $565,018 $502,238 $6,874,385 $11,692,732 $470,848 $449,922 $418,532 $345,289 $355,752 $355,752 $355,752 $355,752 $355,752 $355,752 $3,819,103 $15,511,835

$370,616 $361,351 $333,555 $324,289 $310,391 $301,126 $291,860 $277,962 $250,166 $222,370 $3,043,687 $5,177,048 $208,472 $199,206 $185,308 $152,879 $157,512 $157,512 $157,512 $157,512 $157,512 $157,512 $1,690,937 $6,867,985

$135,010 $131,635 $121,509 $118,134 $113,071 $109,696 $106,321 $101,258 $91,132 $81,006 $1,108,772 $1,885,925 $75,943 $72,568 $67,505 $55,692 $57,379 $57,379 $57,379 $57,379 $57,379 $57,379 $615,984 $2,501,909

$55,063 $53,686 $49,557 $48,180 $46,115 $44,739 $43,362 $41,297 $37,168 $33,038 $452,205 $769,161 $30,973 $29,596 $27,532 $22,713 $23,402 $23,402 $23,402 $23,402 $23,402 $23,402 $251,225 $1,020,386

$643,814 $627,718 $579,432 $563,337 $539,194 $523,099 $507,003 $482,860 $434,574 $386,288 $5,287,319 $8,993,272 $362,145 $346,050 $321,907 $265,573 $273,621 $273,621 $273,621 $273,621 $273,621 $273,621 $2,937,400 $11,930,671

$52,416 $51,105 $47,174 $45,864 $43,898 $42,588 $41,277 $39,312 $35,381 $31,449 $430,464 $732,182 $29,484 $28,173 $26,208 $21,621 $22,277 $22,277 $22,277 $22,277 $22,277 $22,277 $239,147 $971,329

$5,792,734 $5,647,916 $5,213,461 $5,068,643 $4,851,415 $4,706,597 $4,561,778 $4,344,551 $3,910,096 $3,475,641 $47,572,831 $80,917,258 $3,258,413 $3,113,595 $2,896,367 $2,389,503 $2,461,912 $2,461,912 $2,461,912 $2,461,912 $2,461,912 $2,461,912 $26,429,350 $107,346,608

NOTES:

1
st 1

0
 Y

e
ars W

ith
o

u
t P

ILO
T (i.e

. Fu
lly Taxab

le
)

2
n

d
 1

0
 Y

e
ars W

ith
o

u
t P

ILO
T (i.e

. Fu
lly Taxab

le
)

ABATEMENT IMPACT SUMMARY FOR ALL AFFECTED TAXING BODIES

YEARS 11-30, ZERO TAX ABATEMENT

Page 68



COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT 
 

THIS COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), is made and effective this _____ 
day of   , 2024, by and between: 
 

 
THE DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY, a political subdivision of the State of Louisiana, 
whose mailing address is 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, Louisiana 71052, (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Police Jury”) represented herein by its President, Rodriguez Ross; and 
 
 
DESOTO HABILITATION SERVICES, INC. (TIN: XX-XXX5660), a private, non-profit 
501c(3) organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana and recognized by the Internal 
Revenue Service, whose mailing address is 1528 Old Jefferson Hwy; Mansfield, Louisiana, 
71052 (hereinafter referred to as “Contracting Party”)  represented herein by Victoria 
Jackson, its duly authorized Executive Director. 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
 WHEREAS, the DeSoto Parish Police Jury may enter into agreements with other entities to provide 
services authorized under the provisions of La. R.S. 33:1236; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contracting Party has established a day-facility center providing a variety of services 

and activities to assist the mentally, physically and developmentally disabled population of DeSoto Parish; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Police Jury and the Contracting Party desire to enter into a Cooperative Endeavor 

Agreement to provide job and life skills, social programs, and events for clients, to develop well-rounded 
curriculum for the disabled population in DeSoto Parish; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of this Agreement has been duly and validly authorized by the 
parties hereto; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 provides that the state and 
its political subdivisions or political corporations may engage in cooperative endeavors with each other, with the 
United States or its agencies, or with any public or private association, corporation, or individual. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Police Jury and the Contracting Party each agree to perform their respective 
obligations under this Agreement in accordance with the conditions, covenants and procedures set forth herein 
as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
REPRESENTATIONS OF THE POLICE JURY 

 
SECTION 1.01  Police Jury Authority.  The Police Jury has all requisite power pursuant to Article VII, 
Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 and La. R.S. 33:1236 et seq. to enter into this Agreement 
and perform its obligations hereunder, and there are no contracts or obligations in conflict therewith.  
 
SECTION 1.02  No Indebtedness.  The essence of the undertakings of the Police Jury hereunder is for 
the Police Jury and the Contracting Party to work cooperatively. The undertakings of the Police Jury described 
herein do not represent and are not intended to create any indebtedness on the part of the Police Jury, but only 
the cooperative use of the funds to provide services to the poor and necessitous. 
 
SECTION 1.03  Term and Effective Date.  The Term of this Agreement shall commence and become 
effective upon the execution hereof and terminate after the completion of the respective obligations of the parties 
hereto.  

 
ARTICLE II 

COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR OBLIGATIONS 
 

SECTION 2.01 Article VII, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. In entering into this Agreement, it 
is not the intent of the Police Jury and the Contracting Party to enter into a gratuitous transfer of public funds 
because such parties expect the expenditure of funds by the Police Jury will support the Contracting Party within 
the meaning of La. R.S. 33:1236, et seq, and they will each receive something of value in return for the 
performance of their obligations hereunder, which is: 

 
(a) In the case of the Police Jury, to provide financial support to allow for the provision of a  

variety of services and activities intended to improve the lives of members of the mentally, 
physically, and developmentally disabled population in DeSoto Parish; and 
 

(b) In the case of the Contracting Party, providing a variety of services and activities, including, 
but not limited to educational enrichment programs; social programs; and events for the 
development of the disabled individuals in DeSoto Parish. 
 

Additionally, the Police Jury and the Contracting Party will have reciprocal obligations further described herein. 
 

Page 69



The Police Jury and the Contracting Party further find and determine that:  
 
a) both the Police Jury and the Contracting Party have the legal authority to enter into this 

Agreement; and 
b) the project creates a public benefit; and 
c) there is a reasonable expectation on the part of the Police Jury and the Contracting Party of 

receiving at least equivalent value in exchange for the expenditure of public funds by the 
Police Jury. 

 
ARTICLE III 

POLICE JURY OBLIGATIONS 
 
SECTION 3.01   
  

a) The Police Jury shall provide funding in the amount of Thirty-Three Thousand Three 
Hundred ($33,300) to Contracting Party to improve the educational facility by providing hub-
stations, instructional materials, etc. to continue to provide for its various services and 
activities, including developing life skills curriculum to mentally challenged citizens of 
DeSoto Parish to improve their quality of life. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

CONTRACTING PARTY OBLIGATIONS 
 
SECTION 4.01   
  

a) The Contracting Party will use funds provided by the Police Jury to install hub stations, 
purchase instructional materials, etc. at the educational facility. 

b) The Contracting Party shall provide the Police Jury with a written report, invoices and other 
written documentation requested by the Police Jury delineating the way the appropriated 
funds were expended; and 

c) The Contracting Party shall be audited in accordance with R.S. 24:513 and provide a copy 
of the audit to the Police Jury.  

 
ARTICLE V 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

SECTION 5.01  Liberal Construction.  This Agreement shall be construed liberally to secure the 
beneficial intents and purposes hereof and shall be construed liberally as necessary to protect and further the 
interests of the parties hereto.  
 
SECTION 5.02  Notices.   All reports, statements or notices required or advisable to be given hereunder 
shall be deemed to be given if sent to the parties at the following addresses:  
 
POLICE JURY 
 
DeSoto Parish Police Jury  
c/o Michael Norton 
Parish Administrator 
101 Franklin Street, 
Mansfield, Louisiana 71052 
 
CONTRACTING PARTY 
 
DeSoto Habilitation Services, Inc. 
c/o Victoria Jackson 
1528 Old Jefferson Highway 
Mansfield, Louisiana 71052 
 
Any notice required or permitted to be given under or in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and 

shall be delivered by United States Certified Mail, Return Receipt requested; private or commercial carrier; 

express mail, such as Federal Express; facsimile or electronic transmission confirmed by mailed written 

confirmation; or personally to an officer of the receiving party. All such communications shall be mailed, sent or 

delivered to the address or number set forth above, or to the other party at such other address or number 

designated by such party in a written notice to the other party. 

SECTION 5.03  Severability.  To the fullest extent possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be 
interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this 
Agreement shall be prohibited or invalid under such law, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent of such 
prohibition or invalidity without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remaining provisions of this 
Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.04  No Personal Liability.   No covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement shall be 
deemed to be the covenant or agreement of any official, trustee, officer, agent or employee of the Police Jury 
or Contracting Party in his or her individual capacity, and neither the officers thereof nor any official executing 

Page 70



this Agreement shall be liable personally with respect hereto or be subject to any personal liability or 
accountability by reason of the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.05  Captions.  The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in 
no way define, limit or describe the scope or extent of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.06  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each which 
shall be an original and all of which when taken together shall be deemed one and the same Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.07  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed 
by the laws of the State of Louisiana.  
 
SECTION 5.08  Amendment and/or Modification. Neither this Agreement nor any term, provision or 
exhibit hereof may be changed, waived, discharged, amended or modified orally, or in any manner other than 
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.09  Rescission or Amendment. In no event shall any rescission or amendment to this 
Agreement be effective without the prior written consent of the affected parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.10  Third Party Beneficiary.  It is the explicit intention of the parties hereto that no person or 
entity other than the parties hereto, except governmental authorities to the extent required by law, is or shall be 
entitled to bring any action to enforce any provision of the Agreement against either parties hereto, and that the 
covenants, undertakings and agreements set forth in this Agreement shall be solely for the benefit of, and shall 
be enforceable only, by the parties hereto or their respective successors and assigns as permitted hereunder. 
 
SECTION 5.11  Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors, representatives and permitted assigns. 
 
SECTION 15.12  Indemnification: Hold Harmless and Insurance.  The Contracting Party shall indemnify 

and save harmless the Police Jury against any and all claims, losses, liabilities, demands, suits, causes of 

action, damages, and judgments of sums of money to any party accruing against the Police Jury growing out 

of, resulting from, or by reason of any act or omission of the Contracting Party, its agents, servants, volunteers, 

independent contractors, or employees while engaged in, about, or in connection with the discharge or 

performance of the terms of this Agreement. Such indemnification shall include the Police Jury’s fees and costs 

of litigation, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees. The Contracting Party shall provide and 

bear the expense of all personal and professional insurance related to its duties arising under this Agreement. 

SECTION 5.13 Reimbursement of Funds. The Contracting Party agrees and acknowledges the funds 
appropriated by the Police Jury pursuant to Section 3.01 are public funds. As such, the appropriated funds shall 
be used exclusively for the programs and activities referenced in the Agreement. The Contracting Party agrees 
to reimburse the Police Jury all or a portion of the appropriated funds, in the event the Police Jury determines, 
in its sole discretion, the appropriated funds were not expended for the purposes authorized hereunder.  
 
SECTION 5.14  Assignment.  The parties may not assign their rights, duties or obligations under this 
Agreement to any other person or entity without the prior written consent of the other Contracting Party.  
 
SECTION 5.15  Entire Agreement and Amendment.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of 
the parties with respect to the matters contained herein and supersedes all previous agreements or 
understandings regarding the same, whether written or oral. This Agreement may be modified, changed, or 
altered only by an agreement in writing signed by both parties. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have made and executed this Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement as of the date and year first written above. 
WITNESSES:                         PARISH OF DESOTO 

 

             

         Rodriguez Ross, President 

        

WITNESSES:                                                    DESOTO HABILITATION SERVICES, INC. 

 

              

           Victoria Jackson, Executive Director  

      

Page 71



1 

 

COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT 
 

 
  THIS COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR, (the “Agreement”), is made and effective as of this        
    day of                          , 2024, by and between:   

 
 
THE DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY, a political subdivision of the State of 
Louisiana, whose mailing address is 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, LA 71052, 
represented herein by its duly authorized president, Rodriguez Ross (hereinafter 
referred to as "Police Jury"), and  
 

THE KREWE OF AQUARIUS, (TIN:XX-XXX9358), a private, non-profit corporation 
organized in accordance with Louisiana Revised Statutes, its permanent mailing 
address being 1101 Main Street, Logansport, Louisiana 71049, represented herein by 
its duly authorized President, Teresa Stephens (hereinafter referred to as "Contracting 
Party”). 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
 WHEREAS, the Police Jury has the authority to enter into this Agreement as evidenced by its 
governmental purpose under the provisions of La. R.S. 33:1236; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Contracting Party sponsored the 2024 Krewe of Aquarius Parade; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Police Jury desires to cooperate with the Contracting Party to sponsor events 
that promote tourism in Logansport and DeSoto Parish and enhance the quality of life for Desoto 
Parish residents; and 

 
WHEREAS, at a Regular Meeting on December 18, 2023 the Police Jury authorized the 

funding in the 2024 Budget for the Contracting Party; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 provides that the 
state and its political subdivisions or political corporations may engage in cooperative endeavors with 
each other, with the United States or its agencies, or with any public or private association, 
corporation, or individual; and 
 

WHEREAS, the transfer or expenditures of public funds or property is not a gratuitous 
donation;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants herein 
contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
REPRESENTATIONS OF THE POLICE JURY 

 
SECTION 1.01  Police Jury Authority.  The Police Jury has all requisite power pursuant to Article 
VII, Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 and La. R.S. 33:1236 et seq. to enter into this 
Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder, and there are no contracts or obligations in conflict 
therewith.  
 
SECTION 1.02  No Indebtedness.   The essence of the undertakings of the Police Jury described 
hereunder is for the Police Jury to work cooperatively with the Contracting Party in performing its 
obligations and to do to the best of its ability but not to represent that is creating any indebtedness on 
the part of the Police Jury, but rather only to cooperate in the use of its current resources and 
performance of its obligations toward the primary and any related activities described herein. 
 
SECTION 1.03  Term and Effective Date.  The Term of this Agreement shall commence and 
become effective upon the execution hereof and terminate after the completion of the respective 
obligations of the parties. 
 

ARTICLE II 

COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR OBLIGATIONS 
 
SECTION 2.01 Article VII, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. In entering into this 
Agreement, it is not the intent of the Police Jury and Contracting Party to enter into a gratuitous transfer 

Page 72



2 

 

of public funds because such parties expect the expenditure of funds by the Police Jury will support 
the Contracting Party within the meaning of La. R.S. 33:1236, et seq, and they will each receive 
something of value in return for the performance of their obligations hereunder, which is: 

 
(a) In the case of the Police Jury, to provide financial support to sponsor events that 

promote tourism in Logansport and DeSoto Parish and enhance the quality of life of 
Desoto Parish residents.  
 

(b) In the case of the Contracting Party, providing a community event that attracts 
residents and visitors to Logansport and DeSoto Parish and promotes tourism and 
enhances the quality of life of Desoto Parish residents.   

 
Additionally, the Police Jury and the Contracting Party will have reciprocal obligations further 
described herein. 
 
The Police Jury and the Contracting Party further find and determine that:  

 
a) both the Police Jury and the Contracting Party have the legal authority to enter into 

this Agreement; and 
 

b) the project creates a public benefit; and 
 

c) there is a reasonable expectation on the part of the Police Jury and the Contracting 
Party of receiving at least equivalent value in exchange for the expenditure of public 
funds by the Police Jury. 

 
ARTICLE III 

POLICE JURY OBLIGATIONS 
SECTION 3.01   
  

a) The Police Jury shall provide funding in the amount of Three Thousand Five Dollars 
($3,500.00) to the Contracting Party to pay the costs associated with the annual Krewe 
of Aquarius Parade. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

CONTRACTING PARTY OBLIGATIONS 
 

SECTION 4.01  Contracting Party Obligations 
 

a) The Contracting Party will use funds provided by the Police Jury to pay for necessary 
equipment, purchase of new float and continuous renovations of existing Krew floats, such 
as lighting, metal, electrical supplies, tools and sound equipment.  
 

b) The Contracting Party shall provide the Police Jury with a written report, invoices 
and other documentation requested by the Police Jury delineating the way the 
appropriated funds were expended; and 
 

c) The Contracting Party shall be audited in accordance with R.S. 24:513 and provide 
a copy of the audit to the Police Jury.  

 
ARTICLE V 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
SECTION 5.01  Liberal Construction. This Agreement shall be construed liberally to secure the 
beneficial intents and purposes hereof and shall be construed liberally as necessary to protect and 
further the interests of the parties hereto. 
 

SECTION 5.02  Notices.  All reports, statements or notices required or advisable to be given 

hereunder shall be deemed to be given if sent to the parties hereto at the addresses as follows: 

 

 

 

Page 73



3 

 

POLICE JURY 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury 
c/o Michael Norton  
Parish Administrator 
101 Franklin Street, 
Mansfield, Louisiana 71052 
 
 
CONTRACTING PARTY 
 
Krewe of Aquarius 
c/o Teresa Stephens, President 
1101 Main Street 
Logansport, LA 71049 
 
Any notice required or permitted to be given under or in connection with this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be either hand-delivered; by United States Certified Mail, Return Receipt requested; 
by private or commercial carrier or express mail, such as Federal Express; by facsimile transmission 
confirmed by mailed written confirmation; or personally delivered to an officer of the receiving party. 
All such communications shall be mailed, sent or delivered to the address or number set forth above, 
or as to each party at such other addresses or numbers as shall be designated by such party in a 
written notice to the other party. 
 
SECTION 5.03  Severability.  To the fullest extent possible, each provision of this Agreement 
shall be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any 
provision of this Agreement shall be prohibited or invalid under such law, such provision shall be 
ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity without invalidating the remainder of such 
provision or the remaining provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.04  No Personal Liability.   No covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement 
shall be deemed to be the covenant or agreement of any official, trustee, officer, agent or employee 
of the Police Jury or Contracting Party, in his or her individual capacity, and neither the officers thereof 
nor any official executing this Agreement shall be liable personally with respect hereto or be subject 
to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.05  Captions.   The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only 
and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or extent of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.06  Counterparts.   This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each 
which shall be an original and all of which when taken together shall be deemed one and the same 
Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.07  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be constructed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of Louisiana.  
 
SECTION 5.08  Amendment and/or Modification.  Neither this Agreement nor any term, provision 
or exhibit hereof may be changed, waived, discharged, amended or modified orally, or in any manner 
other than by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.09  Rescission or Amendment.   In no event shall any rescission or amendment to 
this Agreement be effective without the prior written consent of the affected parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.10  Third Party Beneficiary.   It is the explicit intention of the parties hereto that no 
person or entity other than the parties hereto, except governmental authorities to the extent required 
by law, is or shall be entitled to bring any action to enforce any provision of this Agreement against 
either parties hereto, and that the covenants, undertakings and agreements set forth in this Agreement 
shall be solely for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable only, by the parties hereto or their respective 
successors and assigns as permitted hereunder. 
 
SECTION 5.11  Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to 
the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors, representatives and permitted 
assigns. 
 
SECTION 5.12  Indemnification: Hold Harmless and Insurance.  The Contracting Party shall 
indemnify and save harmless the Police Jury against any and all claims, losses, liabilities, demands, 
suits, causes of action, damages, and judgments of sums of money to any party accruing against the 

Page 74



4 

 

Police Jury growing out of, resulting from, or by reason of any act or omission of the Contracting Party, 
its agents, servants, volunteers, independent contractors, or employees while engaged in, about, or 
in connection with the discharge or performance of the terms of this Agreement. Such indemnification 
shall include the Police Jury’s fees and costs of litigation, including, but not limited to, reasonable 
attorney’s fees. The Contracting Party shall provide and bear the expense of all personal and 
professional insurance related to its duties arising under this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.13 Reimbursement of Funds. Contracting Party agrees and acknowledges the 
funds appropriated by the Police Jury pursuant to Section 3.01 are public funds. As such, the 
appropriated funds shall be used exclusively for the programs and activities referenced in the 
Agreement. Contracting Party agrees to reimburse the Police Jury all or a portion of the appropriated 
funds, in the event the Police Jury determines, in its sole discretion, the appropriated funds were not 
expended for the purposes authorized hereunder. 
 
SECTION 5.14  Assignment.  The parties may not assign their rights, duties or obligations under 
this Agreement to any other person or entity without the prior written consent of the other party. 
 
SECTION 5.15  Entire Agreement and Amendment.  This Agreement contains the entire 
agreement of the parties with respect to the matters contained herein and supersedes all previous 
agreements or understandings regarding the same, whether written or oral. This Agreement may be 
modified, changed, or altered only by an Agreement in writing signed by both parties. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have made and executed this Cooperative 
Endeavor Agreement as of the date and year first written above. 

 
WITNESSES:                 DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 
 
 
       BY:       
 
       Name:  Rodriguez Ross   
 
       Title:  President    
 
 
   
 
 
WITNESSES:                 KREWE OF AQUARIUS  
      
 
 
       BY:       
 
       Name:  Teresa Stephens   
      

      Title:  President    
 
 

Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Desoto Athletics

Liberty Lane

Grand Cane, La 71032

To whom it may concern:

After a unanimous vote on August 1, 2023, Desoto Athletics Little League requests a

$110,000.00 grant from Desoto Parish Police Jury to improve and better the facilities at the

Grand Cane Ball Park. The funds would pay for new backstops for each field along with new

netting to protect spectators from foul balls, installation of lighting and fans under pavilion and

lighting in batting cages, electrical outlets installed at every field, construction of an outdoor

cooking station for grilling and frying, and replacing old scoreboards along with new

scoreboards placed on fields that do not have currently have a scoreboard. The Desoto
Athletics Board would like to thank the Desoto Parish Police Jury for all of the upgrades made in

the past, and hope you will carefully consider a grant for these improvements. Any questions

you can reach me at 318-464-1999.

Sincerely,

Justin Files

President

Page 81



COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT 
 

THIS COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), is made and effective as of 
________________, 2024, by and between: 
 

THE DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY, a political subdivision of the State of 
Louisiana, whose mailing address is 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, Louisiana 71052, 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Police Jury”) represented herein by its President, 
Rodriguez Ross; and 
 

DESOTO ATHLETICS, INC., (TIN: XX-XXX3146) a public charity under IRC Section 
509 (a) (2) whose mailing address is P.O. Box 157, Logansport, LA 71049; represented 
by Justin Files, its duly authorized president, (hereinafter referred to as “Contracting 
Party”). 

 
 

WITNESSETH 
 
 WHEREAS, the DeSoto Parish Police Jury may enter into agreements with other entities to 
provide services authorized under the provisions of La. R.S. 33:1236; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contracting Party has established a non-profit corporation providing recreation 

to DeSoto Parish youth by sponsoring a supervised baseball and softball program associated with Dixie 
Youth Baseball/Softball and/or Little League Baseball/Softball; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Police Jury and the Contracting Party desire to enter into a Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement to provide adequate programs and facilities for recreational programs to DeSoto Parish youth; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Police Jury owns and maintains the DeSoto Parish Sports Complex that is utilized 

by the Contracting Party to sponsor the baseball/softball program primarily for DeSoto Parish youth; and 
 
WHEREAS, at a Regular Meeting on February 20, 2024, the Police Jury appropriated funds to 

make various improvements and repairs to the DeSoto Parish Sports Complex; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Contracting Party desires to assist the Police Jury in carrying out the repairs and 

improvements to the DeSoto Sports Complex; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of this Agreement has been duly and validly authorized 
by the parties hereto; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 provides that the state 
and its political subdivisions or political corporations may engage in cooperative endeavors with each 
other, with the United States or its agencies, or with any public or private association, corporation, or 
individual; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Police Jury and the Contracting Party each agree to perform their 
respective obligations under this Agreement in accordance with the conditions, covenants and 
procedures set forth herein as follows: 
 
 

ARTICLE I 
REPRESENTATIONS OF THE POLICE JURY 

 
SECTION 1.01  Police Jury Authority.  The Police Jury has all requisite power pursuant to Article 
VII, Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 and La. R.S. 33:1236 et seq. to enter into this 
Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder, and there are no contracts or obligations in conflict 
therewith.  
 
SECTION 1.02  No Indebtedness.  The essence of the undertakings of the Police Jury hereunder 
is for the Police Jury and the Contracting Party to work cooperatively. The undertakings of the Police Jury 
described herein do not represent and are not intended to create any indebtedness on the part of the 
Police Jury, but only the cooperative use of the funds to provide recreational programs to DeSoto Parish 
residents. 
 
 
 
SECTION 1.03 Term and Effective Date.  The Term of this Agreement shall commence and become 
effective upon the execution hereof and terminate after the completion of the respective obligations of 
the parties hereto.  

Page 82



 
 

ARTICLE II 
COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR OBLIGATIONS 

 
SECTION 2.01 Article VII, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. In entering into this 
Agreement, it is not the intent of the Police Jury and Contracting Party to enter into a gratuitous transfer 
of public funds because such parties expect the expenditure of funds by the Police Jury will support the 
Contracting Party within the meaning of La. R.S. 33:1236, et seq, and they will each receive something 
of value in return for the performance of their obligations hereunder, which is: 

 
(a) In the case of the Police Jury, to provide financial support for repairs/furnishings/ 

improvements to the DeSoto Parish Sports Complex; and 
 

(b) In the case of the Contracting Party, to make repairs/furnishings/improvements to the 
pavilion and batting cages at the DeSoto Parish Sports Complex. 

 

Additionally, the Police Jury and the Contracting Party will have reciprocal obligations further described 
herein. 
 
The Police Jury and the Contracting Party further find and determine that:  

 
a) both the Police Jury and the Contracting Party have the legal authority to enter into 

this Agreement; and 
b) the project creates a public benefit; and 
c) there is a reasonable expectation on the part of the Police Jury and the Contracting 

Party of receiving at least equivalent value in exchange for the expenditure of public 
funds by the Police Jury. 

 
ARTICLE III 

POLICE JURY OBLIGATIONS 
 
SECTION 3.01   
  

a) The Police Jury shall provide funding in the amount of Fifty-Five Thousand Dollars 
($55,000) to Contracting Party for repairs/furnishings/improvements to the DeSoto 
Parish Sports Complex pavilion and batting cages. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE IV 
CONTRACTING PARTY OBLIGATIONS 

 
SECTION 4.01   
  

a) The Contracting Party will use funds provided by the Police Jury to 
repair/furnish/improve the pavilion and batting cages at the DeSoto Parish Sports 
Complex. 

b) The Contracting Party shall provide the Police Jury with a written report, invoices and 
other written documentation requested by the Police Jury delineating the manner in 
which the appropriated funds were expended no later than December 31, 2021, or 
returned unused funds to the Police Jury; and 

c) The Contracting Party shall be audited in accordance with R.S. 24:513 and provide a 
copy of the audit to the Police Jury. 

d) The Contracting Party shall complete the work described in 4.01(a) and 4.01(b) in FY 
2021, unless extended by the Police Jury. 

e) The Police Jury shall own, the Contracting Party shall operate, and both parties shall 
jointly maintain the pavilion and batting cages, with the furnishings.   

 
 
 
 

ARTICLE V 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
SECTION 5.01  Liberal Construction.  This Agreement shall be construed liberally to secure the 
beneficial intents and purposes hereof, and in particular shall be construed liberally as necessary to 
protect and further the interests of the parties hereto.  
 

Page 83



SECTION 5.02  Notices.   All reports, statements or notices required or advisable to be given 
hereunder shall be deemed to be given if sent to the parties at the following addresses:  
 
POLICE JURY 
 
DeSoto Parish Police Jury 
c/o Michael Norton, Administrator 
101 Franklin Street, 
Mansfield, Louisiana 71052 
318-872-0738 
 
CONTRACTING PARTY 
 
DeSoto Athletics Inc. 
c/o Justin Files 
P.O. Box 157 
Logansport, Louisiana 71049 
 
Any notice required or permitted to be given under or in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing 

and shall be delivered by United States Certified Mail, Return Receipt requested; private or commercial 

carrier; express mail, such as Federal Express;  facsimile or electronic transmission confirmed by mailed 

written confirmation; or personally to an officer of the receiving party. All such communications shall be 

mailed, sent or delivered to the address or number set forth above, or to the other party at such other 

address or number designated by such party in a written notice to the other party. 

SECTION 5.03  Severability.  To the fullest extent possible, each provision of this Agreement shall 
be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of 
this Agreement shall be prohibited or invalid under such law, such provision shall be ineffective to the 
extent of such prohibition or invalidity without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.04  No Personal Liability.   No covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement 
shall be deemed to be the covenant or agreement of any official, trustee, officer, agent or employee of 
the Police Jury or Contracting Party in his or her individual capacity, and neither the officers thereof nor 
any official executing this Agreement shall be liable personally with respect hereto or be subject to any 
personal liability or accountability by reason of the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.05  Captions.  The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only 
and in no way define, limit, or describe the scope or extent of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.06  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each 
which shall be an original and all of which when taken together shall be deemed one and the same 
Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.07  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of Louisiana.  
 
SECTION 5.08  Amendment and/or Modification. Neither this Agreement nor any term, provision 
or exhibit hereof may be changed, waived, discharged, amended, or modified orally, or in any manner 
other than by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.09  Rescission or Amendment. In no event shall any rescission or amendment to this 
Agreement be effective without the prior written consent of the affected parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.10  Third Party Beneficiary.  It is the explicit intention of the parties hereto that no 
person or entity other than the parties hereto, except governmental authorities to the extent required by 
law, is or shall be entitled to bring any action to enforce any provision of the Agreement against either 
parties hereto, and that the covenants, undertakings and agreements set forth in this Agreement shall be 
solely for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable only, by the parties hereto or their respective successors 
and assigns as permitted hereunder. 
 
SECTION 5.11  Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors, representatives, and permitted 
assigns. 
 
SECTION 5.12  Reimbursement of Funds. The Contracting Party agrees and 
acknowledges the funds appropriated by the Police Jury pursuant to Section 3.01 are public funds. As 
such, the appropriated funds shall be used exclusively for the programs and activities referenced in the 
Agreement. The Contracting Party agrees to reimburse the Police Jury all or a portion of the appropriated 

Page 84



funds, in the event the Police Jury determines, in its sole discretion, the appropriated funds were not 
expended for the purposes authorized hereunder.  
 
SECTION 5.13  Assignment.  The parties may not assign their rights, duties, or obligations under 
this Agreement to any other person or entity without the prior written consent of the other Party.  
 
SECTION 5.14  Entire Agreement and Amendment.  This Agreement contains the entire 
agreement of the parties with respect to the matters contained herein and supersedes all previous 
agreements or understandings regarding the same, whether written or oral. This Agreement may be 
modified, changed, or altered only by an agreement in writing signed by both parties. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have made and executed this Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement as of the date and year first written above. 
 
 

WITNESSES:              PARISH OF DESOTO 

 

 

       BY:       

 

       Name:  Rodriguez Ross   

 

       Title:  President    

 

 

   

 

 

WITNESSES:   DESOTO ATHLETICS INC. 

      

 

       BY:       

 

       Name:  Justin Files    

      

      Title:  President    

Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



1 
 

 
COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT 

 
THIS COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), made and entered into 

this _____ day of    , 2024 by and between: 
 

THE DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY, a political subdivision of the State of Louisiana, 
whose mailing address is 101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, Louisiana 71052, (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Police Jury”) represented herein by its President, Rodriguez Ross; 
and 

 

MANSFIELD CIVICGROUP, LLC, a private, non-profit corporation organized under 
the laws of the State of Louisiana, whose mailing address is P.O. Box 187, Mansfield, 
LA 71052, represented herein by Mary Linda Green, its duly authorized President, 
(hereinafter referred to as “Contracting Party”). 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
 WHEREAS, the Police Jury has the authority to enter into this Agreement as evidenced by 
its governmental purpose under the provisions of La. R.S. 33:1236; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Police Jury and the Contracting Party desire to enter into a Cooperative 
Endeavor Agreement to sponsor various events that promote tourism in Mansfield and DeSoto 
Parish and other programs and services for the poor and necessitous in DeSoto Parish; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 provides that the 
state and its political subdivisions or political corporations may engage in cooperative endeavors 
with each other, with the United States or its agencies, or with any public or private association, 
corporation, or individual; and 
 

WHEREAS, the transfer or expenditures of public funds or property is not a gratuitous 
donation; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Police Jury and the Contracting Party each agree to perform their 
respective obligations under this Agreement in accordance with the conditions, covenants and 
procedures set forth herein as follows: 
 
 

ARTICLE I 
REPRESENTATIONS OF THE POLICE JURY 

 
SECTION 1.01  Police Jury Authority.  The Police Jury has all requisite power pursuant to Article VII, 
Section 14(C) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 and La. R.S. 33:1236 et seq. to enter into this 
Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder, and there are no contracts or obligations in conflict 
therewith.  
 
SECTION 1.02  No Indebtedness.  The essence of the undertakings of the Police Jury hereunder is 
for the Police Jury and the Contracting Party to work cooperatively. The undertakings of the Police 
Jury described herein do not represent and are not intended to create any indebtedness on the part 
of the Police Jury, but only the cooperative use of the funds to sponsor various events that promote 
tourism and other programs and services to the poor and necessitous. 
 
SECTION 1.03  Term and Effective Date.  The Term of this Agreement shall commence and become 
effective upon the execution hereof and terminate after the completion of the respective obligations 
of the parties hereto.  

ARTICLE II 
COOPERATIVE ENDEAVOR OBLIGATIONS 

 
SECTION 2.01 Article VII, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. In entering into this 
Agreement, it is not the intent of the Police Jury and Contracting Party to enter into a gratuitous 
transfer of public funds because such parties expect the expenditure of funds by the Police Jury will 
support Contracting Party within the meaning of La. R.S. 33:1236, et seq, and they will each receive 
something of value in return for the performance of their obligations hereunder, which is: 

 
(a) In the case of the Police Jury, to provide financial support to sponsor various 

events that promote tourism and other programs and services to the poor and 
necessitous. 

Page 88



2 
 

 
(b) In the case of the Contracting Party, providing a variety of community-oriented 

programs that promotes tourism and provides for the poor and necessitous 
individuals in DeSoto Parish. 

 

Additionally, the Police Jury and the Contracting Party will have reciprocal obligations further 
described herein. 
 
The Police Jury and the Contracting Party further find and determine that:  

 
a) both the Police Jury and the Contracting Party have the legal authority to enter 

into this Agreement;  
b) the project creates a public benefit; and; 
c) there is a reasonable expectation on the part of the Police Jury and the 

Contracting Party of receiving at least equivalent value in exchange for the 
expenditure of public funds by the Police Jury. 

 
 

ARTICLE III 
POLICE JURY OBLIGATIONS 

 
SECTION 3.01   
  

a) The Police Jury shall provide funding in the amount of dollars ($10,000) to the 
Contracting Party to pay for costs associated with the sponsorship of the 2024 
Juneteenth Celebration of the free of charge events held on Thursday and Sunday 
only. 

 
 

ARTICLE IV 
DELIVERABLES 

 
SECTION 4.01  Contracting Party Obligations. 
  

a) The Contracting Party will use funds provided by the Police Jury to pay costs 
associated with the free of charge events held on Thursday and Sunday of the 
2024 Juneteenth Celebration that promotes tourism and programs and services 
for the poor and necessitous. 

b) The Contracting Party shall provide the Police Jury with a written report, invoices 
and other written documentation requested by the Police Jury delineating the 
manner in which the appropriated funds were expended; and 

c) The Contracting Party shall be audited in accordance with R.S. 24:513 and 
provide a copy of the audit to the Police Jury.  

 
 

ARTICLE V 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
 

SECTION 5.01  Liberal Construction.  This Agreement shall be construed liberally to secure the 
beneficial intents and purposes hereof, and in particular shall be construed liberally as necessary to 
protect and further the interests of the parties hereto.  
 
SECTION 5.02 Notices.   All reports, statements or notices required or advisable to be given 
hereunder shall be deemed to be given if sent to the parties at the following addresses:  
 
POLICE JURY 
DeSoto Parish Police Jury 
c/o Michael Norton 
Parish Administrator 
101 Franklin Street, 
Mansfield, Louisiana 71052 
 
 
CONTRACTING PARTY 
Mansfield Civic Group 
c/o Mary Linda Green, President 

Page 89



3 
 

P. O. Box 187 
Mansfield, LA 71052 
 
Any notice required or permitted to be given under or in connection with this Agreement shall be in 

writing and shall be delivered by United States Certified Mail, Return Receipt requested; private or 

commercial carrier; express mail, such as Federal Express; facsimile or electronic transmission 

confirmed by mailed written confirmation; or personally to an officer of the receiving party. All such 

communications shall be mailed, sent or delivered to the address or number set forth above, or to 

the other party at such other address or number designated by such party in a written notice to the 

other party. 

SECTION 5.03  Severability.  To the fullest extent possible, each provision of this Agreement shall 
be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision 
of this Agreement shall be prohibited or invalid under such law, such provision shall be ineffective to 
the extent of such prohibition or invalidity without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the 
remaining provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.04  No Personal Liability.   No covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement shall 
be deemed to be the covenant or agreement of any official, trustee, officer, agent or employee of the 
Police Jury or Contracting Party in his or her individual capacity, and neither the officers thereof nor 
any official executing this Agreement shall be liable personally with respect hereto or be subject to 
any personal liability or accountability by reason of the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.05  Captions.  The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and 
in no way define, limit, or describe the scope or extent of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.06  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each which 
shall be an original and all of which when taken together shall be deemed one and the same 
Agreement. 
 
SECTION 5.07  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of Louisiana.  
 
SECTION 5.08  Amendment and/or Modification. Neither this Agreement nor any term, provision or 
exhibit hereof may be changed, waived, discharged, amended, or modified orally, or in any manner 
other than by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.09  Rescission or Amendment. In no event shall any rescission or amendment to this 
Agreement be effective without the prior written consent of the affected parties hereto. 
 
SECTION 5.10  Third Party Beneficiary.  It is the explicit intention of the parties hereto that no person 
or entity other than the parties hereto, except governmental authorities to the extent required by law, 
is or shall be entitled to bring any action to enforce any provision of the Agreement against either 
parties hereto, and that the covenants, undertakings and agreements set forth in this Agreement 
shall be solely for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable only, by the parties hereto or their 
respective successors and assigns as permitted hereunder. 
 
SECTION 5.11  Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors, representatives, and permitted 
assigns. 
 
SECTION 15.12 Indemnification: Hold Harmless and Insurance.  The Contracting Party shall 

indemnify and save harmless the Police Jury against any and all claims, losses, liabilities, 

demands, suits, causes of action, damages, and judgments of sums of money to any party 

accruing against the Police Jury growing out of, resulting from, or by reason of any act or 

omission of the Contracting Party, its agents, servants, volunteers, independent contractors, or 

employees while engaged in, about, or in connection with the discharge or performance of the 

terms of this Agreement. Such indemnification shall include the Police Jury’s fees and costs of 

litigation, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney’s fees. The Contracting Party shall 

provide and bear the expense of all personal and professional insurance related to its duties 

arising under this Agreement. 

SECTION 5.13  Reimbursement of Funds. The Contracting Party agrees and acknowledges 
the funds appropriated by the Police Jury pursuant to Section 3.01 are public funds. As such, the 
appropriated funds shall be used exclusively for the programs and activities referenced in the 

Page 90



4 
 

Agreement. The Contracting Party agrees to reimburse the Police Jury all or a portion of the 
appropriated funds, in the event the Police Jury determines, in its sole discretion, the appropriated 
funds were not expended for the purposes authorized hereunder.  
 
SECTION 5.14  Assignment.  The parties may not assign their rights, duties, or obligations under 
this Agreement to any other person or entity without the prior written consent of the other Party.  
 
SECTION 5.15  Entire Agreement and Amendment.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement 
of the parties with respect to the matters contained herein and supersedes all previous agreements 
or understandings regarding the same, whether written or oral. This Agreement may be modified, 
changed, or altered only by an agreement in writing signed by both parties. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have made and executed this Cooperative 
Endeavor Agreement as of the date and year first written above. 
 
 

WITNESSES:                 DESOTO PARISH POLICE JURY 

       BY:       

 

       Name:  Rodriguez Ross   
 
       Title:  President    
 

 

 

WITNESSES:                 MANSFIELD CIVIC GROUP, LLC   

    

       BY:       

 

       Name:  Mary Linda Green   

      Title:  President    

 

Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



You work hard to provide for yourself and the important people in your life. In addition to giving your loved 
ones the financial security they deserve, the cash value accumulated in a whole life policy can help you while 
you're living. Explore the additional advantages that holding a policy with us can provide for you below.

Employee’s Whole Life Insurance
Guaranteed Issue.

BUSINESS
SOLUTIONS

In Oregon, the Employee’s Whole Life policy form number is ICC17-217-52P. This program is not intended to be subject to the Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). Employee participation is completely voluntary. The employer does not contribute to or endorse the program.  
All guarantees are based on the claims paying ability of the issuer.  
1Accessing cash value will reduce the available cash surrender value and death benefit.  
2 For family eligibility, the employee is required to participate. For spousal coverage above $25,000, the employee must have greater or equal coverage. 
3Dividends are not guaranteed.

Since you own the policy, it remains 
with you regardless of where you 
work or even if you retire. Policy 
remains in force as long as premium 
is paid when due.

Lifelong coverage.

Your permanent policy builds cash 
value, which you can access to help 
pay for emergencies or meet any 
other expenses.1

Guaranteed 
cash value. 

There are no physical exams, and no 
medical questions asked.

Hassle-free  
application process.

Your spouse/domestic partner, 
children, and even grandchildren 
(ages 15 days to 25 years) may  
be eligible for coverage.2

Expandable  
family coverage. 

Stays with you even if you change 
jobs. Take it with you throughout 
your career. It’s your policy. It’s not 
tied to any specific employer or 
group plan.

Portable. 

Your premiums will be deducted 
based on an arrangement with  
your employer.

Convenient 
payments. 

Portable. Grows with you. Customizable.

We’ve been protecting policy 
owners since 1845. And our 
nationwide network of agents is one 
of the most experienced and well 
regarded in the business.

You will be eligible to receive 
dividends3, increase your coverage, 
or add policies for you and your 
eligible family members during future 
reenrollment periods. 

You can customize your policy with 
optional policy riders, some for an 
additional cost.

Page 94



Your agent can help you determine the coverage that's best for you.
Your age:

Face amount Premium

$10,000 min $

$25,000 $

$50,000 $

$100,000 $

$ other $

Spouse/domestic partner age:

Face amount4 Premium

$10,000 min $

$25,000 $

$ other $

Child/grandchild age:

Face amount Premium

$10,000 min $

$50,000 $

$ other $

Child/grandchild age:

Face amount Premium

$10,000 min $

$50,000 $

$ other $

Child/grandchild age:

Face amount Premium

$10,000 min $

$50,000 $

$ other $

Child/grandchild age:

Face amount Premium

$10,000 min $

$50,000 $

$ other $

4For GI Spouse coverage above $25,000, employee must have greater or equal coverage.

The minimum face amount for Employee’s Whole Life is $10,000. The maximum face amount for employees is $100,000 for Guaranteed Issue and  
$150,000 for Simplified Issue. The maximum face amount for spouses, domestic partners, children, and grandchildren is $50,000 for Guaranteed Issue and 
Simplified Issue. 

The maximum face amount for Select Paid-Up is $25,000. For employees, the initial maximum face amount is $100,000 and the lifetime maximum face 
amount is $200,000. For spouses, domestic partners, children, and grandchildren, the maximum face amount is $50,000.

New York Life Insurance Company
51 Madison Avenue 
New York, NY 10010
www.newyorklife.com

15023.102023 SMRU5034043 (Exp.12.27.2025)

Eligibility Requirements
Lock in your insurabilityAge:

16 – 70

Employment duration: 

At least 90 days with employer

Hours:
At least 30 hrs/ week

To maintain you and your family’s eligibility, you  
must purchase a policy during your first eligible 
enrollment period and increase your coverage  
at least once every three years. Make sure to  
lock in your insurability by completing a hassle-free 
application process. 

Contact your New York 
Life agent for more  
information.

Your enrollment is coming up on [enter dates]

Where: [On-site location or virtual information] 
Agent Name 
[CA/AR Insurance License # (when used in California or 
Arkansas)] 
Agent, New York Life Insurance Company 
[Phone Number] 
[Office Number] 
[Address Second Line]

Page 95



            
 

 
 
 
 
Scope: DeSoto Parish Police Jury     Job Title: General Office Clerk 
 
Category: Airport Department       
 
Pay Range: $15.74 - $23.61 
 
Description: 
 
This staff member performs office tasks to support the Airport Manager and staff.  . The position requires an 
individual with fundamental knowledge of office operations and functions. 
 
Duties and Responsibilities: 
 

 Prepares, scans, and indexes documents into electronic archiving system. 
 Runs work related errands. 
 Maintain hangar leases, collections for the Airport. 
 Invoice tenants and process payments at the Airport. 
 Manages and maintains office supplies. 
 Answers telephone and provide general information to staff, clients, and the public. 
 Keeps conference rooms and the kitchen in order and stocked as needed. 
 Works under minimal supervision; achieves goals; asks for assistance when needed. 
 Contributes to team effort by accomplishing related duties as assigned. 

 
Qualifications 
 
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. The 
requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill or ability required. 
 

 A High School Diploma, or GED equivalent is required.  
 A minimum of two (2) years of clerical experience.  
 Ability to operate basic office machines and computer programs competently. 
 Strong organizational and communication skills. 

 
Physical Demands 
 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable 
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. While performing the duties of this job, the 
employee will experience physical requirements similar to those associated with a business office environment, 
travel and outdoor functions. 
 

Page 96



 

 

      
 
 
 
 
 
Scope: DeSoto Parish Police Jury         Job Title: Assistant Solid Waste 
                           Superintendent-Landfill Operations 
 
Category: Solid Waste Department    Salary: $55,369 - $83,054 
 
The Assistant Solid Waste Superintendent – Landfill Operations assists the Solid Waste Superintendent in 
overseeing of the operation of the Parish Landfill. 
 
Duties and Responsibilities: 

 Assist the Solid Waste Superintendent with Landfill Operations to ensure that Parish’s resources are 
used to best serve the citizens and employees of DeSoto Parish and to ensure compliance with the 
landfill operating permit. 

 Assists Solid Waste Superintendent in preparing the annual budget for the Solid Waste Department 
and uses good judgment in spending Parish funds.  

 Supervises all employees assigned to landfill operations, including administrative staff, equipment 
operators and laborers. 

 Reviews work in progress and ensures that projects are completed in a safe and timely manner.  

 Works with Solid Waste Superintendent to ensure that proper and adequate materials are available 
for proper operation of the landfill. 

 May perform the tasks of subordinates: Drives, operates, and maintains various equipment used in 
the landfill operations including dozers, waste compactor, backhoe, front-end loader, articulated 
truck, etc. 

 Provides management of daily activities of the department by supervising activities and supervisors 
within the department. 

 Plans and coordinates work to be done as assigned by Solid Waste Superintendent. 

 Evaluates performance of subordinates as assigned by Solid Waste Superintendent. 

 In absence of Solid Waste Superintendent, the Assistant Solid Waste Superintendent assumes all 
duties and responsibilities of that position. 

 Contributes to team effort by accomplishing related duties as assigned. 
 
Qualifications: 

 High School Diploma 

 Possess a Level 1, Class B Solid Waste Operator’s Certificate and must be able to get a Class A Solid 
Waste Operator’s Certificate within 18 months. 

 Minimum of three years of experience in the field of solid waste management or related field. 

 Must be able to pass a pre-employment drug screen, physical and background check. 

 The ability to plan, initiate and execute procedures and policies and to solve and properly explain, 
verbally and in writing with persons at all levels. 

 
Physical Demands 
 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to 
enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. While performing the duties of this 
job, the employee will work in inclement weather, be required to stand, reach, stoop and kneel; and to lift 
and/or move up to 50 pounds. 

Page 97



511  Sexual Abuse, Molestation and Misconduct Prevention Policy                                                                                                                                     
 

OBJECTIVE:  

 

It is the policy of the DPPJ to provide a work environment free from all forms of abuse and 

molestation.  The DPPJ strives to create a safe environment for all minors involved in DPPJ 

sponsored programs.  Our goal is to protect children from sexual abuse including molestation or 

any type of inappropriate sexual behavior by employees or volunteers and to protect employees 

and volunteers from false accusations.  The DPPJ strives to create a culture where child sexual 

abuse including molestation is discussed, addressed, and prevented. 

 

The policy and procedures set forth will apply to all people who give supervision or have 

custody of minors or who have opportunity to have contact with minors in any DPPJ sponsored 

activity or facility operated by the DPPJ.  

 

POLICY:   

 

DEFINITIONS: 

 

 Minors – Anyone between the ages of zero and 19 years.   

 

 Child Sexual Abuse:  Child sexual abuse involves any sexual activity with a child.   This 

includes sexual contact that is accomplished by force or threat of force regardless of the 

age of the participants, and all sexual contact between an adult and a minor.  Sexual 

contact between an older and a younger child also can be abusive if there is a significant 

disparity in age, development, or size.  Sexually abusive acts may include sexual 

penetration, sexual touching, or non-contact sexual acts such as exposure or voyeurism. 

 

Sexual abuse is criminal behavior that involves minors in sexual activity, contact or 

behavior.  Child sexual abuse includes fondling, sodomy, penetration, intercourse, and 

forcible rape.  Other forms of abuse can include verbal comments, any exposure to 

pornographic materials, inappropriate internet activity, obscene phone calls, 

exhibitionism, or allowing children to witness sexual activity.   

 

This policy will address four (4) areas that are critical for the protection of all minors and our 

employees:  selection process, protection policy, reporting procedures, and responses to 

allegations. 

 

I. Selection Process 

 

A. Employee – Any person who is paid by the DPPJ on a full-time or part-time basis, whether 

they work directly with minors. 

 

Current Employee 

 

 Complete a confidential application form 

 Undergo background records check 

 Complete a release for Criminal Records Check 

 

Page 98



      New Employee 

 

 Complete a confidential application form 

 Undergo background records check 

 Interview by Department Head 

 References checked and verified 

 Complete a release for Criminal Records Check 

 

All records, forms and reports will become a part of the employee’s confidential personnel file.   

 

B. Volunteer – Any person who is not paid by the DPPJ on a full-time or part-time basis and is 

serving in any position involving the supervision or custody of minors.   

 

 Complete a confidential application form 

 Undergo background records check 

 Interview by Department Head 

 References checked and verified 

 Complete a release for Criminal Records Check 

 

Nationwide background checks using the National Sex Offenders database will be conducted on 

an annual basis for all full-time employees, part-time employees and volunteers working directly 

or indirectly with minors on a scheduled or routine basis.   

 

II.  Protection Policy 

 

A. Two Adults – Two adult employees and/or volunteers will be present, or nearby, and 

available on each floor and in the hallways where minors are present.  Reasonable efforts will 

be made to have two (2) adult workers present, or nearby, with all minors during each DPPJ 

activity involving minors.  Reasonable effort shall be made to assure one adult is not left 

alone with one minor at any time.   

 

B. View Windows/Open Doors – Reasonable effort will be made to place minors in rooms 

with view windows or open doors for all DPPJ activities. 

 

C. Red Flags – There are a number of “red flags” that suggest someone is being sexually 

abused.  They may take the form of physical or behavioral evidence. 

 

Physical evidence of sexual abuse includes, but is not limited to: 

 

 Sexually transmitted diseases. 

 Difficulty walking normally. 

 Stained, bloody or torn undergarments. 

 Genital pain or itching; and 

 Physical injuries involving the external genitalia. 

         

     

 

 

   Behavioral signals suggestive of sexual abuse include, but are not limited to: 

Page 99



 

 Fear or reluctance about being left in the care of a particular person. 

 Recoiling from being touched. 

 Bundling oneself in excessive clothing. 

 Nightmares or fear of night and/or darkness. 

 

III.  Reporting Process 

 

Observed or reported child sexual abuse or child molestation shall be reported immediately to the 

Department Head or Human Resources Director.  Once the allegation is reported the DPPJ will 

immediately notify law enforcement.  The DPPJ will cooperate fully with any investigation 

conducted by law enforcement and/or regulatory agencies.  The DPPJ reserves the right to place 

the subject of the investigation on an involuntary leave of absence or reassign that person to 

responsibilities that do not involve personal contact with minors.  To the fullest extent possible, 

but consistent with any legal obligations to report suspected abuse to appropriate authorities, the 

DPPJ will endeavor to keep confidential the identities of the alleged victims and of the subject 

under investigation. 

 

If the investigation substantiates the allegation, DPPJ policy provides for disciplinary actions, 

including termination of employment. 

   

IV.  Responses to Allegations 

 

A. All allegations will be taken seriously and the DPPJ will take appropriate action in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Louisiana, insurance policy requirements, and based 

upon the advice of legal counsel. 

 

B. The official spokesperson for the DPPJ in any of these manners will be the Human Resources 

Director or their appointee.  No other employee shall speak to the media in an official 

capacity or on the behalf of the DPPJ.  

 

C. The DPPJ will document (in writing, with date and signature) all efforts in the handling of 

any incident. 

 

D. The DPPJ will not deny, minimize, or blame any individual involved in allegations and will 

cooperate with the authorities during any incident. 

 

E. This policy must be read and understood by each DPPJ employee and volunteer who works 

directly or indirectly with minors. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 100



 

 

Desoto Parish Police Jury(DPPJ) 

Sexual Abuse and Molestation Policy 

Acknowledgement and Acceptance Form 

 
 

 

After you have read the Sexual Abuse and Molestation Prevention Policy, 

complete this page and return to the Human Resources Director of the DPPJ  

 

 

Print your name clearly. 
 

 

 

 

______________________   ____ ______________________________    __________________ 

           First Name            MI                  Last Name                          Date of Birth 

 

 

 

 

I have read, understand, and hereby agree to abide by the terms and conditions as 

provided in the DPPJ Sexual Abuse and Molestation Policy.  I understand that any 

violation of the aforesaid terms and conditions may result in my being subject to 

discipline up to and including termination as outlined in the DPPJ Human 

Resources  Policy and Procedure Manual.  I further agree to report any abuse, lack 

of compliance or suspicious behavior by others to the Department Head or Human 

Resources Director.  Any violation of this policy, or any inappropriate behavior 

that is not included in the policy but has the effect of causing harm to another or 

any minor will be reported immediately. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signature __________________________________ Date _________________ 

 

Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



607  Inclement Weather Policy 

 

Employee safety is a priority for the Police Jury. The Parish Administrator in consultation with 

the Police Jury President will make determinations regarding delayed openings, partial days, or 

full day closures.  

On days when weather conditions worsen as the day progresses the Parish Administrator may 

decide to close the office early. Employees will be expected to remain at work until the 

appointed closing time, unless their flextime day ends prior to that time, or unless they receive 

permission from their department head to do otherwise. 

When an employee is already on pre-approved leave, that leave will apply even though the office 

may have been closed due to inclement weather. 

All full-time employees will be paid for such time off. Part-time employees will be paid if 

normally scheduled to work that day and only for those hours which the employee would 

normally work.  

Non-exempt employees that are scheduled to work during inclement weather will be paid one 

day regular wages plus 1.5 times the regular hourly rate for each hour worked up to 8 hours and 

thereafter 2.5 times the regular hourly rate for each hour worked for inclement weather. Exempt 

employees that worked during inclement weather will receive no additional compensation. 

Time off from work due to inclement weather is not counted as hours worked when computing 

weekly overtime.  

If employees have questions about this policy or are unsure about any expectations or issues 

during inclement weather, please contact your supervisors, department management, Parish 

Administrator, or the Human Resources Director. 

 

 

Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



 
 
 

OFFICERS 

 
Rodriguez Ross 
President 

 
Greg Baker 
Vice President 

 
Michael Norton 

Parish Administrator 

 
Jodi Zeigler 
Secretary 

 
Lilliana Garcia 
Treasurer 

 
 
 

MEMBERS 
 

Jimmy Holmes 
Keatchie, LA 71046 
District 1A 

 
Bubba Clark 
Logansport, LA 71049 
District 1B 

 
Keith Parker 
Mansfield, LA 71052 
District 1C 

 
Robby Latham 
Stonewall, LA 71078 
District 2 

 
Greg Baker 
Stonewall, LA 71078 
District 3 

 
Richard Fuller 
Mansfield, LA 71052 
District 4A 

 
Jeri Burrell 
Mansfield, LA 71052 
District 4B 

 
Ernel Jones 
Mansfield, LA 71052 
District 4C 

 
Trina Boyd-Simpson 
Mansfield, LA 71052 
District 4D 

 
Nick Rains 
Frierson, LA 71027 

District 5 
 

Rodriguez Ross 
Pelican, LA 71063 

District 6 

DeSoto Parish Police Jury 
101 Franklin Street, Mansfield, Louisiana 71052 
PHONE: (318) 872-0738   FAX: (318) 872-5343 

 
 
 
 
 

February 20, 2024 
 
 

Mr. Charles McBride 

Right of Way Region 1 Manager 

Louisiana Department of 

Transportation and Development 

P. O. Box 4068 

Monroe, Louisiana 71211 
 

 

Re:  Assurances - Uniform Relocation Assistance  

   and Real Property Acquisition Act  
 

Dear Mr. McBride:  
 

The   DeSoto Parish Police Jury   assures that it will comply with the Uniform 

Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act, as amended 
(Uniform Relocation Act), 42 U.S.C. 4601-4655, and, with implementing Federal 

regulations in 49 C.F.R. Part 24. 
 

Specifically, the DeSoto Parish Police Jury assures that: 
 

1. Whenever Federal financial assistance is used to pay for any part of the cost 

of a program or project which will result in the displacement of any person:  

(a) Fair and reasonable relocation payments and assistance shall be provided 

to or for displaced persons in accordance with the Uniform Relocation Act. 

(b) Relocation assistance programs offering the services described in 

accordance with the Uniform Relocation Act shall be provided to displaced 
persons.  

(c) Within a reasonable period of time prior to displacement, comparable 

replacement dwellings will be available to displaced persons in accordance 

with the Uniform Relocation Act. 
 

2. Whenever Federal financial assistance is used to pay for any part of the cost 

of a program or project which will result in the acquisition of real property; 

(a) In acquiring real property the Parish will be guided, by the land 
acquisition provisions of the Uniform Relocation Act. 

(b) Property owners will be paid or reimbursed for necessary expenses as 

specified in the Uniform Relocation Act. 

  

Sincerely, 
 

 

 

Rodriguez Ross, President 

 

RR/jz 
cc: File 

 

Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125


	Top
	1.	Norton's report
	2.	Lobbyist Report
	DPPJ Report - Feb 2024

	3.	Financials
	January 2024

	4.	Minutes
	1-18-24 Regular Meeting Minutes Document
	2-5-24 Budget and Finance Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	2-5-24 Policy and Procedures Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	2-5-24 Administrative Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	2-5-24 Solid Waste Committee Minutes Document
	2-5-24 Buildings and Properties & Parks and Recreational Committee Minutes Document
	2-5-24 Insurance Committee Minutes Document
	2-5-24 Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	2-5-24 Road Committee Meeting Minutes Document
	2-5-24 Special Meeting Minutes Document

	5.	Waterworks District No 1
	6.	Planning Commission
	7.	Executive Session
	8.	Appointment of Treasurer
	RESOLUTION  Treasurer signature 2-2024

	9.	NORWELA Council
	Agreement Norwela Council and DeSoto Parish Police Jury - Highway signs 2024
	DeSoto Parish Police Jury Resolution - Highway signs for Kinsey Scout Reservation 2024 REV

	10.	President sign
	RESOLUTION  President signature 1-2020

	11.	Sales Tax
	12.	Resolution for approved items
	Resolution for projects

	13.	DESRi
	Ltr of Support DPPJ
	PILOT Model_Dolet Hills_50Abatement(11.13.2023)

	14.	DeSoto Habilitation
	2024 DeSoto Habilitation Services Inc_ 1.24.24

	15.	Krewe of Aquarius
	2024 Krewe of Aquarius CEA 1.24.24

	16.	Term Limits
	17.	Westdale Plantation
	RRP Westdale Plantation

	18.	DeSoto Athletics
	DA Police Jury
	DeSoto Athletics 2024 CEA - DeSoto Sports Complex

	19.	Mansfield Civic Group
	Mansfield Civic Group
	2024 Mansfield Civic Group LLC (Juneteenth)-2

	20.	Hog eradication
	21.	4H parking lot
	4H Parking

	22.	Ball park
	23.	Whole life insurance
	Guaranteed Issue Valuable Benefits Flyer_Apprvd 12_27_23

	24.	General Office Clerk
	General Office Clerk-Airport

	25.	Assistant Solid Waste
	Assistant SW Superintendent-Landfill Operations

	26.	Policy 511
	Policy 511
	Policy 511

	27.	Policy 607
	607 Inclement Weather Policy

	28.	Handbook
	Definitions for Handbook

	29.	Purchasing Policy
	Purchasing Threshold

	30.	Relocation Letter
	2024 DOTD Relocation Assurance.doc

	31.	Speed Bumps on Evans Loop
	32.	Road Signs
	Street Signs Colors

	33.	Speed bumps Red Bluff
	34.	Forte and Tablada
	Forte and Tablada agreement

	35.	Providence Scope of Work
	Providence Scope of Work

	Bottom

